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SENATOR DEBORAH ORTIZ:  The Senate Committee on Health and the Senate Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review, Subcommittee 3, that governs health and human services, is about to begin.  I will be joined shortly by a number of my colleagues.

It is our desire today to give an opportunity to review the Governor’s proposed Medi-Cal redesign efforts and hopefully provide an outline of what is to come, or at least proposed by the Administration, as well as allow an opportunity for particularly the advocates to raise issues that allow you to do so in a public forum with representatives from the executive branch here.


We’ve got a lot of material to cover.  Hopefully, we’ll be joined by members shortly, so we’ll give a couple of minutes to wait for them.

##


I want to thank all of you for attending here today to discuss and hopefully have some information provided to all of us on the Medi-Cal redesign.  

Medi-Cal comprises an important element of the state’s safety net for the state’s most vulnerable populations.  In my mind, it has been a very successful program because it’s brought healthcare to literally millions of those who would otherwise not be able to obtain healthcare.  Medi-Cal is also a significant portion of the state’s budget.  So, any attempts to alter the program, as we are faced with each year, as you know, have major consequences to the populations intended to be served by the program.

The proposal the Administration has developed certainly is an intriguing one.  I’m pleased that the Administration has not directly reduced eligibility or provider reimbursements.  On the other hand, many of us are concerned with several of the elements, especially charging low-income beneficiaries the cost of a premium.  My concern is that the imposition of a premium will lead to disenrollment of about 100,000 beneficiaries, of whom 40,000 are children. 


Although I share the Administration’s desire to ensure that Medi-Cal is an efficient program, I’m also concerned, however, that unless changes are carefully considered, the potential savings of redesign may not be realized.  By simply allowing disenrollment because of a cost that may be out of reach of these families is not a success.  We simply then have to serve those who are not treated in a preventive mode in a more acute and costly situation.


The lure of possible savings may drive the debate on Medi-Cal without adequate consideration of the healthcare risks and the human risks.  As we consider many ways to save money, let’s not forget the very real success of the program in providing, again, much needed medical care to vulnerable Californians.

This is a very complex proposal that the Administration is embarking upon.  There are elements that we cannot focus on today.  We have been selective given the time constraints.  One of the critical issues that will be impacted by the redesign, of course, is hospital financing.  We’re not focusing on that issue today.  I understand Senator Ducheny did spend some time in the Budget overview hearing on that aspect of it, with some concerns raised there.  I’m sure we’ll revisit that in the budget process.  But there are a number of things we’re not going to get to.  There are a number of healthcare costs that are soaring that placed hospitals on a critical list in recent years, and any change to the program has to consider the role of hospitals in continuing to treat the needy.


We’ve been joined by a couple of my colleagues.  I’m going to give them the opportunity to provide some opening comments, and then we’ll move forward to our witnesses.  Let me just remind the witnesses that we have a very full agenda.  We do have a timer out front here.  Your presentation will be timed, and we’re going to be pretty aggressive about that time constraint to get through the full program.  So, please honor that request.


With that, let me ask my colleagues, Senator Vincent and Senator Chesbro, if they’d like to provide some opening comments.  I understand we’ll be joined by our colleagues on the other side of the aisle.  Their staff is here and are welcome to be here.  Senator Ducheny, hopefully, will join us soon.


Members?


Let’s have the chair of the Budget Committee—Senator Chesbro.


SENATOR WES CHESBRO:  Madam Chair, I’m just very glad that you and Senator Ducheny convened this hearing, and I’m looking forward to hearing the discussion about the proposals.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  As you will hear time and time again as the Budget chair.


Senator Vincent?


SENATOR EDWARD VINCENT:  No, I don’t have any comments.  I just want to listen and enjoy.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for joining us.


Senator Runner, who is the vice chair of the Health Committee, will hopefully peek his head back in, and at that time he’s certainly welcome to make some opening comments as well.


With that, let us move to the first topic area.  I believe that’s “Medi-Cal Managed Care in California.”  We have Stan Rosenstein, who is the deputy director for Medical Care Services, as well as Mr. Rico—who is, I believe, legal counsel with the department?


MR. LUIS RICO:  No, I am the acting chief of the Medi-Cal Managed Care Division for the department.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Well, welcome.  We’ll have you reintroduce yourself at the appropriate time.


We also have Howard Kahn, who is the chief executive officer of L.A. Care.  Please come join us.  We’re going to have everybody take a seat at the table.  We have Michael Murray, who is the executive director of the San Mateo Health Commission and California Association of Health Insuring Organizations.  We also have Joanne Bovee, legislative advocate, California Association of Health Plans; as well as Steve Hon, program manager, County of San Diego Health and Human Services Agency.  Our own local Mr. James Hunt, who is the director of the Sacramento County Department of Health and Human Services.  Thank you for joining us.  Lisa Folberg, legislative advocate for CMA; as well as Barbara Glaser, who is the legislative advocate for the California Hospital Association.


With that, let me just extend an invitation to my vice chair, Mr. Runner, if he wants to make opening comments.


SENATOR GEORGE RUNNER:  No.  Actually, I serve on the Budget subcommittee, too, so we’ve actually had some of this already.  But I figured you never can get too much of this stuff, so I came back for more.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes, this is true, so thank you for enduring.


With that, let’s have our first speaker, Mr. Stan Rosenstein.  Welcome.


MR. STAN ROSENSTEIN:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair and members of the committees.  We really appreciate the opportunity to come talk about the Medi-Cal redesign proposal.  It’s nice seeing some of you again for the first time this year.  


Let me give you a real brief summary of the Medi-Cal redesign.  We’ve been spending about a year working on Medi-Cal redesign, trying to make it a very thoughtful process.  It does cover a number of areas:  delivery systems (which we’ll be talking about in a few minutes), hospital financing, (which we will not), scope of benefits, Medi-Cal beneficiary cost-sharing, and eligibility processing, and all the others we’ll be talking about.  


So, why redesign the Medi-Cal program?  Well, the Medi-Cal program really has been built incrementally over a number of years.  We really have not taken a very broad look back to see how the program should be reengineered.  Since 1998-99, the program has grown in cost by about 60 percent, or $4.5 billion, General Fund.  So, we’ve seen major, large cost growths.  We’ve seen major eligibility expansions:  about 1.2 million new people covered through expansions; about 1.8 million new people on Medi-Cal since 1998-99.  The demographics of Medi-Cal are changing.  The demographics of the State of California are changing.  People are getting older, and that affects Medi-Cal costs in the high area cost areas.


So, we have a proposal we think is very thoughtful, and we’ve spent a lot of time working with advocates and various legislative staff on the proposal.  We’ve had in excess of twenty-five stakeholder meetings to design this program.  We didn’t rush it; we took a year.  Really, it’s designed to talk about two twin imperatives.  One is to maintain eligibility for the people who are eligible—not changing the eligibility standards—and to control costs.  In the budget year itself, the Medi-Cal budget will go up, between current year, $987 million.  

The redesign does propose to expand upon what we consider to be our successful managed care program.  We’re in a number of counties.  The members should have maps that describe the counties that we’re in and the models that we are in.  We today serve about 3.2 million people in Medi-Cal managed care.  About 280,000 of those are currently people who are seniors or people with disabilities.  So, we do provide a lot of care to people, both children and families, in whole categories of Medi-Cal eligibility.


We’re proposing an expansion in two areas.  One is to expand geographically, and the other is to expand populations.  The reason we think that managed care is important is we think service delivery systems do matter, that managed care does provide more organized care and managed care does deliver care better, and managed care does a better job of controlling costs than the fee-for-service program.  And we know that from experience.  We have a number of health plans that are here today, and they can talk about their experience—and we can talk about it—who have been successful in delivering care but not without some bumps and bruises over the years, but we’ve learned a lot of lessons.  Part of the redesign process is to start with stakeholder groups to define how we do things, learning from the lessons of the past.


We are proposing to move into additional counties.  We are already starting discussions with some of the counties.  Some of the counties have a lot of interest.  We want to be flexible on delivery in those counties, but we really want to look at one of two models:  building upon our County Organized Health Systems that have been very effective.  I think if you talk to the counties that have County Organized Health Systems, the stakeholders and advocates would never go back to the Medi-Cal fee-for-service program.  And we want to build upon a Geographic Managed Care program, also, where a County Organized Health System does not work, because that gives people ______________ choice of the number of plans.

So, our proposal is to enroll another 260,000 new families and children into managed care in thirteen expansion counties.  Again, they’re mapped out.  In the interest of time, I won’t go through every county, but they’re available on the map.


We want to move for “Medi-Cal Only” beneficiaries 550,000 new people, seniors and disabled, into the twenty-seven managed care counties and expansion counties.  So, it’s a very large expansion of mandatory eligibility for people who are “Medi-Cal Only” seniors or disabled.  

And we want to try a new concept which we think has a lot of promise in controlling nursing home care costs over the long term, meeting Olmstead.  We’ll recall the Acute and Long-Term Care Integration project, and we want to do that in Orange County, San Diego, and Contra Costa.

It is a massive task.


So, we are, just to recap, proposing to move about 800,000 people into Medi-Cal managed care in twenty-seven counties—thirteen new counties—about 500,000 seniors and people with disabilities into managed care in both current counties and managed care counties.  


It is a major challenge to expand the managed care of this nature.  We did this in the mid and late nineties when we did a large expansion.  We learned a lot of lessons from that process.  We didn’t do it perfect, by any means.  So, we’re looking at implementation issues, and the biggest one is:  When will we know that we’re ready?  Are the plans ready?  The department has to be ready; the enrollment process has to be ready.  People have to be educated—members’ rights.  So, we are spending a lot of time now, and we spent a lot of time with stakeholders, talking about what is the measurement of plan readiness?  And especially related to:  When is a plan ready to cover the aged, blind, and disabled?  It’s a different set of standards than we’ve used in the past that County Organized Health Systems deliver.  But we want to make sure we’ve learned from the lessons of the past—the best example is probably Cal Optima, which is our most recent major expansion—so that we can address the issues that are specific to the disabled.

We want to have a stakeholder process in the implementation.  We did this in the Two Plan implementation very successfully.  We need to address our reimbursement rate process.  Our managed care rates are set based upon a rate methodology that’s controversial at best.  So, we’ve now hired an actuarial consulting firm to help us determine how to set rates.  And we have a very long implementation timeframe.  If you look at things, we’re not proposing to move people in really quickly.  There’s no budget year savings of managed care.  It’s a long implementation process to make sure we do it right.


I’ve tried to provide an overview.  Luis is here for answering questions, but I think that covers an overview of the managed care proposal.  It is the key element of our redesign proposal.  We think it provides better care, and it reduces expenditures, and more importantly, it controls the long-term growth and cost growth to the Medi-Cal program, while at the same time providing what we consider to be a better delivery system.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Mr. Rosenstein.  I think you’re probably even under your time allotted, so we’ll probably reserve that for questions.


One question I’d like to ask, since you have a bit of time left, is:  Can you share with the committee who was hired to do the rate study in the department—or which company?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  It was Mercer.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Are there further questions of members?


Senator Chesbro.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Stan, good to see you.  Welcome to another year.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We think.  [Laughter.]


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Individuals who are aged, blind, or disabled are currently able to voluntarily enroll in those counties where Medi-Cal managed care exists.  My understanding is that they haven’t in significant numbers.  If not, why do you think they haven’t voluntarily enrolled?

MR. ROSENSTEIN:  In the County Organized Health System, in eight counties it’s mandatory, but for the Two Plan counties and GMC it is voluntary.  I believe we’ve got about 10 percent enrollment.  My assessment is, managed care is scary to people.  They don’t like change, so it’s a very difficult decision to make.  And that really is the difference why it’s mandatory.  People, by the norm, don’t want to make the change.  They like the fee-for-service program, not necessarily because it provides better care, but it provides more freedom.  That’s my view of it.


MR. RICO:   This is Luis Rico with the Department of Health Services.


An additional factor, I think, that we need to consider is the fact that this population is a voluntary population and predominately overall has not been informed of Medi-Cal managed care in the past.  Very recently the department has provided additional informing materials to the population because of a federal requirement under the Balanced Budget Act of 1997.  So, by and large, a large segment of this population is not familiar with managed care.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  How will the department determine that a plan is ready to serve aged, blind, and disabled?  And I want some specific answers to that.


MR. RICO:  One of the things that we intend to do is to convene stakeholder workgroups and work directly with the population, with the advocate community, with the provider community, with the health plans themselves, to actually sit down and vet out what those specific areas should be.  We need to take a look at the specialty provider availability, the provider networks within those counties, and we need to discuss specifically what some of the health plans who are currently serving the population today have done that are successful.  The Inland Empire Health Plan in the Two Plan model serves this population, and it’s been very successful.  It’s catered to the population and has done significant outreach to the population in the information that’s provided to them.  The County Organized Health Systems also have a long history of success with the population as well.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Well, I’ve been talking to a number of the providers in my district who are in counties that are maybe proposed to be on the list, and while they’re open to talking about it, there’s a great deal of trepidation about what it means, even with the provider that we have, which I think has a very good reputation, the Partnership Health Plan; the one that’s geographically the closest and makes the most sense. 


What has been done so far in those counties to begin conversations with the counties, with the providers, to talk about what this actually will mean?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’re just in the initial stages of beginning discussions with the counties.  We’ve got a lot of work to do in that area.  We didn’t want to jump ahead of things with the Legislature to try to solidify things, but we have started conversations with various counties and various stakeholders—a lot of work to be done in that area.  What we’re seeing so far is, a number of counties—for example, that we wanted to do Geographic Managed Care—have come back to us and said, We’d like to be County Organized Health Systems, and we’re certainly open . . .

SENATOR CHESBRO:  Come under what system?  I’m sorry.

MR. ROSENSTEIN:  They’d rather be County Organized Health Systems.  We’ve had a couple of counties come to us and say, We’d rather be a County Organized Health System.  And we’re open to that.  It takes a federal law change.  We can’t customize everything in Sacramento for the local areas, so we have to work with them.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  With regard to the stakeholder process, you’ve got, sort of, the chicken and the egg situation, because on the one hand, I understand the reluctance to progress with too much specificity until we’ve gone through this discussion.  On the other hand, a person such as myself who represents some of those counties—and many of us are going to want to know what the reaction of our providers in our counties are and whether or not it’s possible that this could be worked out in a way that is beneficial to their ability to serve our constituents.  And so, I think a parallel process is really needed in order to bring those folks into the discussion, not necessarily a conclusion.  We wouldn’t want you to be making a final conclusion except through this process, but I think that those stakeholders are critical to my judgment on how successfully we can progress with this.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  I would agree with you that we need to be out in the communities talking to them as part of this process.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Unless there are other members who have questions, I have one final question for Mr. Rosenstein.


Maybe you covered this and I missed it, but does the department intend or feel it’s necessary to introduce legislation to achieve the redesign objective?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We believe there’s legislation required in all of the redesign objectives, and we’ve proposed, I believe, trailer bill language to do that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I assume you’re working with the Budget Committee staff.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We are.  But I think every piece of that requires state legislation, and there’s various different implementing requirements for the federal government.  Some are state plan amendments, some are waivers.  It varies based on the federal rules.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, there’ll be ample opportunity for various Budget Committee hearings to engage the Legislature.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, I appreciate that.


Questions from other committee members?


Let me welcome Senator Torlakson, Senator Kuehl, Senator Cox, who have joined us, and vice chair of the committee, Senator Runner.


Unless there are other questions, we’ll go on.  I understand Mr. Kahn has some scheduling issues, so we’ll have you go ahead and present.  I think you’ve been briefed on time commitments.


Welcome.


MR. HOWARD KAHN:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair and members of the committee.  We’re in very good time.  I’ve got a while, still, until my flight.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Great.


MR. KAHN:  I’m Howard Kahn.  I’m the CEO of L.A. Care Health Plan and also chair of the Local Health Plans of California, the collaboration among the local initiatives from throughout California.  Collectively, the Local Health Plans serve over 1.4 million members.  At L.A. Care, we have about 730,000 members.  I also was the first CEO at the Health Plan of San Mateo County, an Organized Health System, but I won’t talk about that because to my left is Mike Murray, and he’ll do that more later.


We believe that under the appropriate conditions, managed care can be beneficial, can be cost-effective, and can improve the health outcomes of seniors and persons living with disabilities in the Medi-Cal program and through the Medi-Cal program.  Medical-Cal managed care currently builds upon the foundation of Medi-Cal by providing members services and programs above and beyond those offered by the Medi-Cal fee-for-service program, and I’ll talk about those a bit in a moment.  

We believe that there can be improved health outcomes with using managed care principles in serving seniors and persons with disabilities.  They have a higher prevalence of chronic conditions, both physical and mental conditions, than does the current managed care population within Medi-Cal and most of the state.


Managed care also provides the opportunity for case management and care coordination which is crucial for people with chronic conditions.  But we also believe that managed care can and has provided increased access to physicians and reduces inappropriate use of emergency rooms.  Member education and outreach are also cornerstones of what we try to provide through local initiatives and other managed care programs.  


Let me talk a little bit about L.A. Care’s experience in serving the seniors and the populations with disabilities.  L.A. Care has currently about 25,000 seniors and persons with disabilities enrolled in our program.  That’s only about 3 percent of our membership.  But I should say that since the department started actually providing information about enrollment, that Luis Rico mentioned earlier—under the Balanced Budget Act—that number has increased on a month-by-month basis, each month.  So, there is some propensity to select managed care programs.


We have about 175,000 potential enrollees under the Administration’s proposal in Los Angeles County alone.  So, this is a very substantial population to be served under the Two Plan model in Los Angeles.  That would be Health Net or L.A. Care.  Those would be the two choices under the Two Plan model.


Presently, a disproportionate number of L.A. Care seniors and persons with disabilities are enrolled in Kaiser as a subcontract—under a subcontract to L.A. Care, about 14 percent—whereas, they are less than one percent of our total population.  Kaiser, for example, has taken steps to make their system more accommodating for people with disabilities, and thus, they have made those kinds of choices.  Blue Cross, which is our largest subcontractor at L.A. Care, has about 2½ percent of seniors and persons with disabilities.

In general, our membership is younger and healthier than the folks that have remained in the fee-for-service program within the disabled population.  So, among the seniors and disabled, they are the ones who have voluntarily enrolled and appear to be both younger and healthier than the average population, which again provides us with another challenge in expanding the services.

L.A. Care is in the process of implementing systems enhancements for serving seniors.  To address some of your questions earlier, we’ve already begun to do focus groups with, particularly, the disabled community.  But we have started to talk to providers, and we have entered into a contract with an organization—the Center on Disability and Health Issues, I believe it’s called—to do work with us to try to prepare our system better for serving these folks, both in terms of the direct care needed and also in terms of physical and communication access to services, transportation, network capacity, et cetera.  We’ve begun to analyze all of that.

Also key for us will be enhanced cultural and linguistic services, something that L.A. Care has spent a lot of time on thus far.  There are a number of disabled populations, for example.  We can’t talk about the disabled population as a “group.”  There are many different subsets within that group, and there are, very often, ways of communicating, seeking services—a culture, if you will—that needs to be addressed.  It currently is not addressed in the Medi-Cal fee-for-service system in any formal way.  Also, this is a group that is well represented by advocates, and so, you can expect to see a grievance and appeal system.  It needs to be very sophisticated and ready to respond to the needs of this very often, very needy population.  Also, the coordination of non-emergency medical transportation is important.  It’s something that we’re beginning to address.

A couple of cautions, if I might enter a couple.  We are anxious to serve this population.  We think we can do it well.  But it is very important that the safety net hospitals continue to have a stabilized funding stream.  Absent to that stabilized funding stream, I think that an implementation of a program like this could be very problematic for our public and private safety net both.  And they need to not be financially harmed, to the greatest extent possible, under any new program. 

Member identification and outreach is also important.  The aid codes presently in Medi-Cal are quite broad and do not indicate specific disabilities.  So, information, as folks are enrolled in these programs, about their specific disabilities, be they a physical disability, be they a mental illness or other mental disability—which is the three large groups that’ll be served under the disabled population, in particular—information about those folks as they are enrolled in the programs is very important.

And community advisory panels are needed, as you mentioned earlier.  To best serve these folks, you need to hear from them.  You need to hear what their problems are, what their challenges are.  


And there needs to be assurances that the equipment and accessibility at the physician sites, at the physical sites, is assured and that folks are directed to the appropriate locations. 

And finally—and this goes without saying—I think the reimbursement needs to be adequate to serve this population.  This is a high utilizing population that can quickly get away from you on a cost basis if we don’t keep up with reimbursements.  And so, we’re heartened to hear that the department has contracted with actuaries in order to better implement the program.


And finally, I would say that—and this is particularly important for the local health plans—we have a very high level of sensitivity to our mission.  We exist for serving vulnerable populations and protecting the safety net.  And we are extensions of the local communities.  We’ve demonstrated our commitment through our leadership and the development throughout many parts of California—now the Healthy Kids program which is covering uninsured kids in many communities in California now.  This is part of our commitment as well.  If the state decides to move in this direction, we will make sure that we are out in front helping to serve this population as best we can.  We can’t walk away from vulnerable populations, and we shouldn’t, and we don’t intend to; though, we must strike a delicate balance among our programs.  We serve mostly families right now.  This is another population entirely to serve.  We are ready to do that. 

We believe that partnering with the state is important in this process.  At L.A. Care, we hosted the stakeholder meetings that occurred when they were developing this program, at L.A. Care’s offices, and we were happy to do so because we wanted to be part of the process and hopefully part of the solution.


Thank you very much.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much.  


Let me allow the co-chair of this committee, Senator Ducheny, if she wants, to provide some opening comments, and welcome her.

SENATOR DENISE DUCHENY:  Thank you.  Thank you all very much for being here.  The Budget subcommittee held one hearing already on this that focused more on the hospital financing, that you just raised.  We are all very concerned about that.  The possibilities of getting the federal funds that are being talked about—you know, we don’t see that money yet, so it’s really hard.  The biggest thing I learned in the financing hospital piece was, until we figure out how much federal money there is, we don’t know how to fix the rest of it.  It’s difficult to do until we know what that’s really going to be.


But we know that there are problems with hospital staffing and trauma care facilities closing and, certainly in Los Angeles, emergency rooms.  We are going to convene some more hearings from the Budget subcommittee in regions throughout the state, so we’ll probably be calling on some of you again in your own communities, because we want to hear, particularly in this managed care discussion, about how it could work:  Will it work?  How many people can you really do?  How is it going to take place?  Does the Single Point of Entry thing work?  Are there ways to ensure that everybody gets covered?  I know some of you will talk about that now.  And certainly, we want to hear about the dental issues.

So, we welcome all of you and hope that you can work with us all year.  It’s only the second, but it will not be the last, I promise, on these issues.  Not only will we have regional hearings throughout the state, but there will be continued discussion in the Budget subcommittee hearings here in Sacramento.  We really do want to craft genuine solutions and ensure that what we’re doing works for everybody.


So, thank you all for being here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Unless there are questions from other members of this witness . . .


SENATOR EDWARD VINCENT:  Madam Chair?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Vincent.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I’m kind of confused with some of the statements that Mr. Kahn made.  I’m talking about financing.  He used the term “vulnerable population,” and he mentioned about physical disability and he mentioned mental disability.  I’m wondering:  Where does Medi-Cal stop and Medicaid begin in these areas?


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Medicare.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Well, Medicaid also.


MR. KAHN:  Well, Medi-Cal and Medicaid being identical, they run in parallel, if you will.  The plan at present, as I understand it from the Administration—and maybe I should just let you folks answer it, but I’ll answer it for you, at least—is that the crossover population—that is, those folks who are dually eligible for Medicare and Medicaid—will not be included in this implementation.  It’s for the Medi-Cal eligible.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes, that’s actually a very critical issue.  We have about a million people in California who are eligible for Medicare and Medi-Cal.  Often, Medicare provides most of the services—hospital services, physician services.  In January of 2006, they’ll provide pharmacy services, but they don’t provide nursing home care services.  About 85 percent of the people on Medi-Cal who are in nursing homes are Medicare eligible.  So, we’ve got three pilots proposed—Acute and Long-Term Care Integration—to try to integrate the two programs and have health plans integrate it to make the programs work together, because today they don’t work together very well.  People have to maneuver through two systems, and the result is, if Medicare fails, often we end up with people in Medi-Cal in nursing homes that could have been prevented.

So, your question is very good.  We’re trying to do three pilots to integrate the two programs together.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Mr. Vincent.  Any other questions?  


I can’t see the timer, so I assume we’re all sticking to the time constraints.


With that, our next speaker is Mr. Murray.  I’ll allow you to introduce yourself.


MR. MICHAEL MURRAY:  I’m Michael Murray.  I’m the executive director of the Health Plan of San Mateo.  I’m also, today, speaking on behalf of the California Association of Health Insuring Organizations.  That is the five County Organized Health Systems that operate in eight counties throughout the state.  Our chair wasn’t able to make it today, so he asked me to come since I’m fairly close geographically.  As somebody said, I was volunteered to volunteer.


The County Organized Health Systems have been around for some time.  I’ll just give you a quick rundown.  In 1983, the Santa Barbara Regional Health Authority started; 1987, the Health Plan of San Mateo went operational, though there had been a lot of work since ’83 on that.  Howard can speak to that.  In 1994, the Partnership Health Plan began in Solano and has since expanded to include Napa and Yolo counties.  In 1995, Cal Optima, who’s our big guy, they went operational.  And January 1, 1996, Santa Cruz went operational, and since then they’ve expanded into Monterey.  People may not remember, but Monterey was actually a demonstration project similar to Santa Barbara as a County Organized Health System back in 1983.  That was a very good demonstration of what not to do when you set up a County Organized Health System.  So, it was a good demonstration, and we all learned from that.

The County Organized Health Systems cover about 560,000 members on Medi-Cal.  They are basically all the Medi-Cal in the county, which includes the aged, blind, and disabled.  It includes those who are Medi-Medi.  The aged and disabled make up approximately 30 percent of our membership.  It runs from around 26 percent in some counties to San Mateo where it’s 42 percent; 41.2 percent are aged and disabled.  We have over 20 percent aged, and so, that skews the numbers.  We’re twice as many as anybody else.  Therefore, it does affect us significantly on things like pharmacy costs.  It skews everything, but it allows us to help manage the program.

The key elements of the County Organized Health Systems that I think we want to make sure we make clear is that we all are mission-driven, similar to the local initiatives.  We are locally developed.  We’re under a county ordinance.  Our board of supervisors appoints our membership.  Included on our membership of our board of directors are representatives of constituents or actual constituents, members of the board of supervisors and representatives of the provider community.  So, it is really representative of the local delivery system.  That’s a key element to the process.


In addition, our mission was to improve healthcare access and quality of care.  We arrange comprehensive networks to deliver care to our members subject to the county.  For example, Santa Barbara and San Mateo use much more direct contracting because of the nature or the makeup of the provider network in our hospitals.  L.A. and Orange County use more of a network approach because of the nature of the delivery system; it’s different.  And I think that’s very important.  You go to Partnership, they are heavily involved with Kaiser in Vallejo because Kaiser has a long history of treating Medi-Cal in that community.  So, you can design your program locally.  Those are some of the key elements.

The benefits, as we see, of the County Organized Health System—the first thing is, the Medi-Cal card that people get is really a license to hunt for a doctor in a fee-for-service system.  In our system, we guarantee access, as any managed care plan does.  Approximately 90 percent of our primary care providers in the community contract with us versus maybe 55 percent in a fee-for-service area.  We are able to get this kind of participation, including specialists, because they know we’re locally controlled by local policies.  If they have a problem, they have somebody to call to; they’re not on hold forever; they get a response.  It’s the same people there when they call from time to time.  These are very important.

We believe we are reaching the goal of quality.  If you look at the HEDA studies that the state does—that is, the County Organized Health Systems are always in the top five-or-so of performers, top ten for sure, and have won a lot of different awards, and this is competing with commercial plans, too, and the Two Plan model.  So, it’s not something unique.

We have developed, because of the population we have, Disease Management Programs to deal with diabetes to heart problems, to asthma in children, and a variety of other programs.  Some have very formalized ones.  We have people obviously in long-term care in our programs.  Some of the plans have developed very strong caseworkers to work with people in nursing homes.  We have a policy of trying to visit all our members in the hospital, from our member services reps.  It’s that customer service that’s critical.  That is really our marketing tool because we don’t have to market; we have a monopoly.  But that training is a tremendous help to them.

We have people who are able to deal with people with certain disabilities.  Many things Howard talked about, he had actually instituted in San Mateo when I got there, so it made my life much easier.  But we have a community advisory committee that is representative of the constituent groups and the advocacy groups.  Legal Aid was terribly involved in the development of our grievance process.  I mean very closely involved.  These are very important things.


And the other thing we offer is efficiency.  According to the Packard study that was done last year, which some of you may have seen, they estimated approximately 150 million General Fund dollars are saved from the County Organized Health Systems, and that’s not insignificant when you look at the big picture.  And we do it on very low administrative costs of just over 6 percent, on average.  We’re obviously not-for-profit, though some of us want to make sure we break even.

The concern Howard pointed out is the commitment of funding—and this has been an issue that the Administration has responded to last year—is that inflation goes on in the medical field regardless of what happens with inflation in the general system.  The fee-for-service system goes up 8, 9 percent a year in costs, for a variety of reasons—growth, membership, expansion, et cetera.  Ours is held closer to 5 to 6 percent.  Pharmacy’s the biggest issue.  It goes up to 16 percent.  We’ve held it to around eight.  These are very important issues for us because with 40 percent of our members getting two prescriptions per month, they can be very costly.  

And so, from that point of view, we think we provide an excellent alternative and show how the system can work.  There are a number of elements there that are important.  I think Howard touched on those and their awareness.  These are many things that we’ve been doing in our plans that you would hear from everybody else what’s going on.


The best compliment you can get is when we have any trouble financially, whatever, people come to us—doctors and members—saying, We don’t want to go back to fee-for-service.  You heard Stan say that, and it’s very true; that they don’t want to go back to fee-for-service.

We have providers who serve San Francisco and Santa Clara counties because they’re right close.  We contract with some of them.  They will take Health Plan of San Mateo; they won’t take Medi-Cal.  That’s the distinction they make.


And we’ve been able now in many of the counties to expand, similar to the Healthy Kids programs.  We in San Mateo actually have Healthy Kids.  We’re in part of Healthy Families with four other commercial plans, and we have an In-Home Supportive Services worker program.  And we have just submitted our proposal to be a Medicare Special Needs Plan because we’ve got over 13,000 members who have Medicare.  So, we need to be able to try to coordinate that service delivery system.  We’ve got to go through the federal hoops on this.  When Part D hits in January with the pharmacy benefit, there’s a lot of unknowns, and we felt we needed to position ourselves.  Cal Optima is doing a similar thing because they have a very large number of individuals that are Medi-Medis also. 


So, I think it’s an opportunity for us to bring that coordinated care to the aged, blind, and disabled, which is, I think, the key thing if you’re going to deal with the costs, because 30 percent of our people are 70 percent or more of the costs.  If so, you’ve got to address that issue.

Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much, Mr. Murray.


Questions from members of the committee for Mr. Murray?  It appears to be an impressive plan, but I’m not sure . . .


MR. MURRAY:  There are five impressive plans.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, there you go.


If there are no questions, then let’s have the next speaker:  Joanne Bovee.  Welcome. 


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Actually, Madam Chair?  I’m sorry.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, go ahead.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Going back to my earlier question about reaching out—and I don’t actually know if this is your members’ responsibility at this point—but in my district, the Partnership Health Plan is very well regarded, but understandably, the counties that are proposed to be added in have some trepidation about whether it will fit in their counties successfully.

Has there been any interaction, do you know—or maybe I should ask if anyone from Partnership Health Plan is here to answer that question.  But let me ask it more broadly, though.  Between the counties that are proposed to be added to the county managed care plans and the counties that are in now to begin the conversation about how it might work, is there a stakeholder discussion underway?


MR. MURRAY:  There is some conversations.  I know Partnership has talked to several counties about the issues.  I know that Santa Cruz has been talking to at least one, and I know that Santa Barbara has been speaking to at least one and had some preliminary with the second.  But they’re very preliminary.  Of course, they’re at somewhat of a disadvantage because until the state can say, Yes, you’re going to be in some sort of managed care, there’s not much leverage.

SENATOR CHESBRO:  I understand, but helping those providers and those counties understand how it works now I think can begin to plow the field for the possibility of this working.


MR. MURRAY:  It is happening.  I know that the medical societies in Santa Barbara are talking to their counterparts in San Luis Obispo to reassure them that the system can work and that it’s a good thing.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Ms. Bovee?

MS. JOANNE BOVEE:  Joanne Bovee with the California Association of Health Plans.  We have the pleasure of representing Knox-Keene licensed health plans.  That includes some of the COHS, the local initiatives, and the commercial plans.


I think to try and truncate a few of my comments, I think Mr. Kahn and Mr. Murray did an excellent job of describing some of the benefits of managed care.  We believe it’s a proven model.  We believe that managed care brings a variety of benefits to enrollees; not only the access issue, which has been discussed, but the data collection that is also done, the measurement of quality of care, the encounter data with the enrollees.  The department and Department of Managed Health Care knows what’s going on with these folks, and they’re able to measure it, and we are held accountable for that information as well.

Mr. Kahn touched on the cultural/linguistic requirements, which I think are substantial for members of this community.  That is something unique to managed care.  You do not find that in fee-for-service.  And there’s also a transportation element that managed care can contribute to their enrollees.


We also sponsor a number of health education and preventative type of programs, including diabetes and substance abuse information, well child, tobacco control and prevention.  So, we believe we have a number of pluses and benefits that an enrollee would not find in a fee-for-service environment.


The industry, as you heard—we are looking internally, actually, to a number of plans that have done a good job or a great job at serving this population to replicate models of success.  We’ve met internally with some of those folks and had discussions.  We’ve had large industry meetings, talking to some of the advocates to get a better understanding of the types of things that the plans would need to do.  What we’re seeing now is that the plans individually are looking internally into their own structure and doing assessments as to where they need to grow and the efforts they need to start taking, and I think you’re beginning to see some of that.  We do have kind of a chicken-and-egg element going on, but the plans are beginning that outreach.


I would like to stress, as Luis said, the enrollment of the seniors and people with disabilities population is voluntary.  They really did not know that managed care was an option—unless they, themselves, sought it out—up until the last year or so.  So, we actually think that in those counties where it’s not a mandatory enrollment, we’re actually seeing significant increases in that population with voluntary.

We are meeting, also, with DHS as far as gaining a better understanding of who’s in the aid codes so we can do what we need to do internally there, as well as—and I know this was discussed at Senator Ducheny’s last hearing—getting a list of the providers in those areas.  That’s going to be critical for the plans to be aware of who are the fee-for-service providers now so that we can ensure that a number of them, whatever we can do as far as contracting, that they are part of our networks.


So, that being said, we are optimistic about this proposal.  We think it is doable.  We think the timeline is doable.  We think we can actually provide better care than they are currently receiving.  All that being said, an adequate rate structure will be essential to us being able to accomplish that.


I think that wraps it up.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Questions from committee members?  Let’s go ahead and hold off then.  Thank you for being briefer than your time allotted.


The next speaker is Mr. Steve Hon—if you would introduce yourself. 


Welcome.


MR. STEVE HON:  Good afternoon.  I’m Steve Hon.  I’m with San Diego County Health and Human Services Agency.  I’ve been responsible for our activities in Medi-Cal managed care since 1996.  


Originally, San Diego County was supposed to be a Two Plan county.  The community and the county felt that the GMC model would be better suited to our county, if we could avoid the problems that occurred when they implemented GMC in Sacramento County.  Under the leadership of the county, there was an intensive community planning process to come up with a model based upon consensus among all stakeholders.  Those stakeholders included consumers, consumer advocates, private practice physicians, community clinics, hospitals, health plans, and anybody else who wanted to come to the table.  The planning process took three years before we arrived at consensus for our model.


The planning input from the community also continued over the two years that we went through the mandatory enrollment of families on Medi-Cal into managed care.  And that took two years.


The county supported legislation to allow GMC in San Diego County and to have a role for the county and the community in the managed care service delivery system.  The county’s role is embodied in an administrative contract with the state, and those requirements are mirrored in the health plan contracts in San Diego County.  The community’s role is established in the legislation for local advisory committees of consumers and professionals, and those committees operate under a Brown Act fashion.  


Concurrent with the community planning process, the county and the state were involved in lengthy discussions and negotiations on how the model would be implemented in our county.  The relationship between the county and Department of Health Services and the California Medical Assistance Commission, who negotiates the health plan contracts in our county, has evolved into a solid partnership.  Much of the original focus in our county was on the conversion of mandatory enrollment for families to avoid disruption both for the consumers and the providers.


The county continues to support enrollment activities by contracting with GeoAccess to provide a web-based database available on the county’s website for all providers and all health plans, including Kaiser, in our county.  They can also find out which providers provide services under the Healthy Families program.

The larger focus in Healthy San Diego, our GMC model, is now on collaboration between the county and the health plans.  A key part of that is viable maintenance of Memorandums of Agreement between the health plans and the counties in areas such as public health, California Children’s Services, mental health, an MOA with San Diego Regional Center, and MOAs regarding interactions between the health plans and the school districts, particularly San Diego Unified School District.


Other collaboration efforts are provider site certification of provider.  It can be in all the health plans, but they only get one site certification.  And the county via our Administrative Services Organization, that we use for our indigent program, maintains the database on all those site certifications, and so, the health plans share the site certifications.  They send the results into the database, and then it’s available to the other health plans that contract with those providers.  We also use that database for the site certification for community clinics, and we use those monitoring and that tool for how we monitor those clinics for our County Indigent Health Program.


The agency also provides, through our Training and Staff Development section, CMEs and CEUs for providers who attend the collaborative training sponsored by the health plans.  The plans contribute an amount each year from themselves, and they secure funds from sponsors, for some of the provider training activities, and the county manages the budget of those funds through our Administrative Services Organization.


In the state plan, they talk about geographic expansion of our GMC into Imperial County.  Our county’s more than willing to share our experience and knowledge with the people in Imperial County regarding population expansion.  The health plans in San Diego County are interested in serving the aged, blind, and disabled population if the capitation rates make sense for them. 


Based on our experience, because our county is actually involved in the enrollment of people into health plans, we know that the aged, blind, and disabled population would need additional outreach if they are going to make an informed choice regarding a managed care plan, unlike the conversion of families to mandatory enrollment.  Many of this population do not have Medi-Cal cases managed by the county.  Many are on SSI, and the county does not see them.  


San Diego County has also been specifically interested in a pilot project on Medi-Cal Adult Mental Health patients.  There’s about 20,000 people who are active to Adult Mental Health, on Medi-Cal.  We believe that if we could have them enrolled in health plans, we could coordinate care between the mental health providers, and they would probably have better access to physical healthcare in our county.


The key lesson that we’ve learned in our county, from our experience, is that managed care can be successfully implemented to the Medi-Cal population if there’s sufficient time allocated to do a comprehensive local planning process in conjunction with the county and the community, including hospitals, clinics, physicians, consumer advocates, and consumers.  It can’t be designed from Sacramento.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Let me just ask a couple of questions.  How does it work right now in the back country, if you will—the Campo areas and the Borrego Springs and those areas?  Do you have providers out there?  How does that work?


MR. HON:  The two main providers in the back area, one is the Borrego Springs Clinic, and then also the Campo Community Clinic.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  So, the clinic does it.


MR. HON:  Yes.  Community clinics represent about 40 percent of the enrollment in health plans in the county.

SENATOR DUCHENY:  But they’re actually considered providers under your plan?


MR. HON:  Right.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Okay.  So, that’s how you can get them in.  I was trying to figure out how we do managed care there.  I think there’s a couple of questions that arise, and I think you’re right to talk about implementation time.  If it hasn’t been mandatory for the elderly and the SSI populations and whatever, I mean, I think that’s going to be a real issue for them.  It’s the same as we went through it in San Diego with the first round of mandatory, and it took a couple of years to get everybody there.  It’s sort of the same question Senator Chesbro asked with respect to discussions with Imperial County.  I don’t hear a lot from out there, like they even know this is happening, to be honest.  

The reason I asked about the back country is because you’re going to have the same issues in Imperial.  There is no Sharp, there is no Kaiser, and I don’t know quite how we would do that in Imperial County.  That’s kind of, I guess, my question.


MR. HON:  It has been an issue.  Actually, the Healthcare Association for San Diego County also covers Imperial County, and I know the Healthcare Association is particularly interested in having sort of one mop for both counties.  The Council of Community Clinics also serves Imperial County.  We work closely with the Council of Community Clinics on the development of Healthy San Diego.

SENATOR DUCHENY:  But there aren’t a lot of regular managed care plans in Imperial County is the real issue.


MR. HON:  No.  Kaiser is not interested in . . . 


SENATOR DUCHENY:  There’s no Kaiser, there’s no Sharp, there’s no Blue Cross.  Well, there might be Blue Cross.  I don’t know—there’s enough public employees out there.  I’ll have to check with somebody, but I mean, there’s not a lot of doctors is the first problem, and beyond that, how many are willing to engage in a managed care program or to what extent they even exist to be able to do that?  There’s some clinics, so you could use those.  I’m real concerned about how that would actually play out, but we’ll talk about it more at the San Diego hearing.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  Other questions from committee members for this witness?


SENATOR VINCENT:  I just want to say one thing.  In your presentation, you mentioned disabled citizens and you mentioned blind and you mentioned the word “capitation.”  I heard her saying that in San Diego County, apparently you don’t have any Kaisers or that nature.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  No, Imperial County—the one they’re trying to expand to.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Okay.  I was thinking about L.A. County, and I know we do have quite a few Kaisers.  You used the word “capitation.”  When you said that, are you talking about, if more money was involved, you’d be able to do what you need to do in regards to the blind and disabled?


MR. HON:  I think the health plans receive a certain amount each month for each member that’s enrolled, and there’s a different amount for family aid categories versus disabled categories, and there’s concern on the part of the health plans that the capitation payments to the health plans would be sufficient to cover the risks associated with this population.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  To the department on that, I mean, it goes back to the discussions that the department’s having in Washington.  I saw Secretary Leavitt last weekend.  We talk about trying to make everybody be efficient, but the truth is, part of what we need to ask for when we’re in those discussions is money that acknowledges the work that keeps people out of hospitals.  The way the federal system is set up right now, it’s designed to have a disincentive to people, like the folks sitting at this table who try to keep people healthy enough to stay out of hospitals.  It’s designed to kind of give more incentive to keep them in the hospital than it is to do outpatient services and managed care and urgent care and have systems in place.  I don’t know where it fits in that conversation that you’re having with them back East, but it just seems to me that at some point, the federal government has to acknowledge the need to pay us for true services and to not penalize us for being efficient, as they have been over the last several years.  

I know in the case of San Diego, some of the clinics that we were just talking about—I mean, the rates are tough for them in a capitation thing because they don’t have that many people.  It’s one thing if you’re in a big urban environment where you have lots of people to spread it out among them.  It’s another thing when you’re in a small rural county and/or in a rural area of a county and you don’t have so many people to cover your overhead.  And the fee-for-service is more than the managed care rate, and so, the reimbursement rates that everybody’s talking about, I think there’s a very real problem.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  I would agree.  The crux of the hospital redesign, which we’re not talking about today but Mr. Kahn mentioned, is to break that linkage between the dependence upon hospitalizing people and bringing in funding.  We think we’re close on that, but that has been the crux of about a six-month discussion with the federal government.  

In terms of the clinics, the clinics do, actually, okay on managed care because we still give them the FQAC or rural health clinic reimbursements.  So, they do okay.  Certainly, we have a lot of interests, a lot of us around the table, about how to address our managed care rates.  We’re not proposing big savings in the managed care proposal because we think we have to address it.  And as I mentioned, we are hiring an actuarial consultant to help us out on that process.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  So, what are you looking at in terms of time?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  In terms of the . . . ?


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Like to do this consultant and get your actuarials.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’re probably, to be honest with you, about a year away from the rate resolution, which will be in time for the expansion.  I know the existing plans would like to see it a lot quicker.  But in terms of the expansion, it’s going to take awhile to have the consultant come in and build. . . . we’re talking about building a new rate structure.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  And I think he’s right.  It’s probably going to take another two years to figure out how to make people who have been voluntary mandatory.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Right.  This proposal allows quite a bit of time to do that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All right.  Other questions from committee members? 


If not, we’re going to go ahead and invite Mr. Jim Hunt, who is the director of our Sacramento County Department of Health and Human Services. 


Welcome.


MR. JAMES HUNT:  Thank you, Senator Ortiz.  Glad to be here.  Members.

Sacramento County has a unique experience from the other counties and plans you’ve heard from.  Let me just give you a little background on the Sacramento profile.  We’re a largely urban county but with some rural areas, but all of our residents have healthcare available within a reasonable driving distance.  Most of them get their healthcare in Sacramento, but some do go down to Lodi or up to Roseville for care in surrounding counties.  


Sacramento County’s government, through my department, runs a primary care and public health clinic system.  We contract with local providers for secondary and tertiary care, such as specialty diagnosis, treatment, and hospital care.  We sold the county hospital to UC Davis in 1971.  A wonderful decision.


Because of the extremely low Medi-Cal fee-for-service reimbursement rates, Sacramento County discontinued primary care for Medi-Cal recipients over a decade ago.  We generally limit our practice to serving our mandated population, which is the medically indigent.  We simply couldn’t survive on the Medi-Cal rates that were provided.


We have a loosely woven safety net in Sacramento County.  There are no federally qualified health centers in the county.  We’ve seen a decline in the number of fee-for-service providers.  Some of that was directly the result of low reimbursement.  Some was because they joined managed care plans because the reimbursement there was somewhat better.  This does create access problems for our Medi-Cal population that is still fee-for-service.


Sacramento County is an area that has a huge penetration rate when it comes to managed care.  The general population—over 35 percent of our residents belong to Kaiser alone, plus the other managed care plans in the county.  So, it was a fertile ground in which to implement an experiment in managed care.


The state Department of Health Services imposed GMC on the county in 1994.  There was no partnership and no input on our part.  TANF families were required to join GMC; the aged, blind, and disabled were offered the option.  There has been almost no publicity or marketing of that until very recently, so the take-up rate has been very low.


Under the Sacramento model—and I want to get into some detail of what really is going on in Sacramento that, as a government, we see—the county is responsible for determining eligibility for Medi-Cal, but we have no role in the enrollment in a Geographic Managed Care plan.  That’s done by a private contractor.  We have contracted with Healthcare Options to do this in our offices at no charge.  So, they’re in our eligibility offices helping out our clients.  

This bifurcated role creates problems for us and for our beneficiaries.  Typically, a Medi-Cal family comes in for an eligibility interview for CalWORKS and Medi-Cal.  They may have had to take a bus and a transfer too.  There’s usually a kid or two or three or four in tow.  They wait for their appointment.  They get into the appointment, and it is a long, complex, and very arduous process.  By the time they’re done, they want nothing to do but to get out of that building.  They get out into the lobby and Healthcare Options are out there saying, Wait, wait.  Let’s enroll you.  They say, Mail me the plan materials.  Well, the plan materials are promotions for five different health plans, six different dental plans, plus the applications.  This is, in itself, intimidating, and if you’re not real conversant in the English language, it’s even more intimidating. 


What happens all too often is that no decision is made, and they are assigned by default.  The federal tolerance rate is 18 percent for default assignments.  We average between 17 and 19 percent.  For some, the default choice is okay; for many, they don’t like it.  For many who have made a choice, once they try and access care and get to a physician, they decide they don’t like them and want to change.  Who do they call?  They call who they know:  their eligibility worker.  The eligibility worker feels an obligation to help out and spends as much time with a client as they would have enrolling them in the first place.


The Sacramento County GMC is an eleven-year-old pilot project.  To my knowledge, the state has not conducted an evaluation to determine whether this should be made permanent or duplicated.  Currently, there are five plans covering over a 160,000 lives in Sacramento.  While they are covered by these plans, they frequently present at Sacramento County clinics for public health issues such as sexually transmitted diseases.  Many of them don’t want to go to their primary care doctor and admit they’ve got it.  As a good public health department, the first thing we want to do is control contagious disease, so we treat them.  And this is permissible under the contract between the state and the plans, and reimbursement is provided.  We have to contract, though, with each of these plans, which is an arduous process, and bill them, and the reimbursement rate, with one exception, is abysmal.  So, what happens is, you as a state pay the plans to provide these services under the terms of agreement between the contract with the state and the plans.  We do it, bill them, don’t get paid, and get left holding the financial bag.  Something’s wrong with that picture.


The Sacramento County Board of Supervisors created a community-based GMC Commission in an attempt to work with and influence the state and the Geographic Managed Care plans.  The commission operated for a number of years trying to obtain relevant data, collaboratively plan for community health outcomes, increase preventative care, improve access, raise the quality of care, and influence the state and the plans.  When it became clear that the local voice would not be heard, the commission disbanded in 2001.

In 2003, members of the former commission were able to identify some funds, brought on a consultant, and did an evaluation on their own to assess what GMC had accomplished and what they hadn’t accomplished in Sacramento County, and here’s some of their findings.


One, access to care did improve, and in fact, our Health Rights Hotline provided us data that show that the fee-for-service population had a five times greater rate of problems with access than did the managed care plan members. 


The health plans were making significant progress in improving the quality of care for GMC participants.  However, the data collected from the plans is incomplete and not useful for evaluation purposes.  There were mixed findings with regard to GMC dental, and the commission was unable to determine from the limited information they got whether it was actually cost-effective in reducing costs or not.

Based on the Sacramento experience, here are my recommendations regarding Geographic Managed Care and its expansion for this population.


Please involve the counties in these discussions.  Our commission identified the Healthy San Diego model as one to emulate if you were doing Geographic Managed Care.  To quote our commission’s report, “Without a new model,  such as Healthy San Diego, county government and other community organizations will not have effective involvement in improving the Sacramento healthcare environment.”


Secondly, consider partial Geographic Managed Care where appropriate.  The issue that was brought up about Imperial County applies in the Sacramento region too.  It would be very appropriate in the Placer County areas and El Dorado County areas where there is a large population or where they’re near Sacramento County, such as Roseville, Rocklin, El Dorado Hills, Cameron Park, and maybe even Placerville.  But when you get to Truckee and Lake Tahoe, more of those people go to Nevada for care than California.


I would also like to suggest, perhaps, a regional GMC with the three counties—Sacramento, Placer, and El Dorado—be considered.


Third, allow county eligibility workers to enroll clients in managed care plans.


Fourth, develop an improved reimbursement process for counties that provide public health services to GMC beneficiaries.  And we’d also recommend that mental health and California Children’s Services continue to be carved out.


With regard to the aged, blind, and disabled population, we see some potential positives and some significant concerns.  The positives are that these individuals would be involved in mainstream care, very similar to what the bulk of the residents in Sacramento County receive through managed care plans.  As we’ve seen in our study, access is improved under Geographic Managed Care.  The concerns—and, Senator Chesbro, you brought this up and we share that—is that the plans have the capacity, the expertise, and the appropriate physical facilities to adequately serve these individuals. 


As you’ve seen, there will be resistance from the advocates.  I sit in an awkward position because I represent the medical community in Sacramento County and the adult and aging population.  But if we’re talking about forcing people to change providers, that is a huge issue for people who have a long-term relationship, and that needs to be considered.  Perhaps we ought to incentivize fee-for-service providers to join managed care plans so we do not disrupt the continuity of care.


There’s also a perception, and perhaps a reality, that the quality of medical equipment provided under fee-for-service is better than under the managed care plans.  That needs to be looked at.


No matter which way the state decides to go, Sacramento County wants to be a partner.  We’d like to have a role, and we believe we can assist in making this a successful transition, no matter what your decision.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Mr. Hunt.  I have a couple of questions, but I want to see if any of my colleagues have any.


I appreciate your presentation.  I’m, unfortunately, going through very quickly the analysis—or the report—on Sacramento’s Geographic Managed Care program.  It’s dated October 2003, and it was done by, I believe, the Community Services Planning Council.  So, I’m going through this very quickly regarding some of the recommendations that were made there.

I think there was a recommendation that Sacramento County should develop and adopt a plan for increased community involvement in the Sacramento healthcare delivery system as it affects the community members, including Medi-Cal, GMC, and fee-for-service beneficiaries.  And this was over a year ago.  Can you tell me whether this recommendation has been implemented in terms of the counties establishing a community involvement—at least the commission developing a plan for community involvement as of this date?


MR. HUNT:  No.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is there a desire or an agreement that that would probably help access?


MR. HUNT:  That really was what we tried to do with the Geographic Managed Care Commission.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, it makes the recommendation that the commission—do you not have this report?


MR. HUNT:  Yes, I do.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Let me just say to you:  “The GMC Commission established by the Board of Supervisors to monitor the GMC program believes that Sacramento County should develop and adopt a plan for increased community involvement in the Sacramento healthcare delivery system as it affects all community members, including Medi-Cal, GMC, and fee-for-service beneficiaries.”


So, the recommendation is that the county do this—from your own commission.  Have they considered it?  


MR. HUNT:  It’s still under consideration, but we have not brought anything to our board of supervisors yet.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I think it is one of the recommendations regarding how we might provide better access, however faulty the GMC system may be and the fee-for-service; that there is a recommendation.  Of course, it makes the standard recommendations we’re going to hear from everybody, as we should, which is increase the reimbursement rates.  I mean, this is an annual battle across the system.  That is a consistent recommendation, and I don’t know that we’ll achieve it in the time I have left in the Legislature.

You know, there are a number of recommendations regarding how the county can do things better.  We’ve had conversations in the past around the primary care clinic, and it’s been the county’s position that that is an adequate provider of service for our uninsured and our underinsured in Sacramento County, and you, by your own admission, acknowledge that even with the wonderful new primary care clinic that has been built, we still have families and individuals sitting there for eight hours in a day in some cases.


What is your estimate of the uninsured?  I know we’ve had conversations over the last two or three years, as we opened the South Sacramento clinic which we believe lessens some of the burden on our overburdened hospital systems, particularly the Med Center and the others.  What are our estimates in terms of the uninsured in Sacramento County as of this date?  We’ve had a difference in terms of how one calculates that.  I want a snapshot of how many you think we have uninsured.


MR. HUNT:  I’ve heard estimates from 80,000 to 240,000.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  What’s the county’s official estimate?


MR. HUNT:  My department has not made an official estimate.


What we have done, Senator Ortiz—because of the fiscal constraints we’re under, two years ago we reduced our clinical services to provide care to the medically indigent, and that’s a very limited population.  Above and beyond that, because it’s not a mandate and we don’t have the discretionary funding to serve the population above that—you’re absolutely right—their options for care are very limited.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  And Sac Advantage is no longer being touted as the mechanism to address those uninsured.  Or where are we on Sac Advantage?


MR. HUNT:  We pushed that initiative, and unfortunately, the take-up rate by private companies was very low.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It was about a million dollars in the corpus that we were expected to make interest on, that would then fund the uninsured.


MR. HUNT:  Plus we got a federal grant of about $700,000.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, it’s under $2 million is the corpus which determines the base that we are going to generate income to then serve all the uninsured in Sac County.  That was my recollection of our last discussions a couple of years ago on this issue.


MR. HUNT:  The intent was to provide a healthcare subsidy so that the employer, the employee, and the county all participated in the premium payment.  We still have money in our trust fund.  We have not exhausted it.  Quite honestly, we’ve exhausted very little of it because of the poor take-up rate on the part of employers.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s not a criticism, but I was somewhat skeptical as to whether or not that would address the uninsured through that model, and it appears that that continues to be the case today.


MR. HUNT:  Correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I appreciate that clarification.  You know, I wish I’d had more time reviewing this report before today, and we can certainly handle this outside in another setting.


MR. HUNT:  I’d be more than happy to.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, I think I’ll find some time to chat with you on the local initiative efforts.  I know we’re anxious to move forward.  I know there was an announcement today which, I’m not sure, I thought we were not going to be moving forward with the Yolo County I-80 corridor counties on the local initiative, but I seem to recall there was an article in the Bee today that we indeed are going forward.

MR. HUNT:  Correct.  Then cover the kids by 2006 agenda, and that really addresses kind of what you were talking about, about the uninsured population.  That’s really where we’ve gone.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, the kids of the uninsured, not their parents.


MR. HUNT:  Correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Because it was my understanding that we were not going to go forward with that regional approach and that we were. . . . well, we can chat about that in another setting.


Thank you for your presentation.


Are there questions from other members of the committee?


With that, let’s go on to our next witness.  Ms. Folberg, welcome.


MS. LISA FOLBERG:  Thank you.

Good afternoon.  Lisa Folberg from the California Medical Association.  

We have major concerns about the Governor’s proposal.  We heard from the health plans about some successful managed care experiences, and we would agree that managed care works well for some people in some areas.  But the Governor’s proposal would force over 800,000 people into managed care in what we would characterize as a very ambitious timeline.  I know the department thinks that it’s a pretty long timeline, but to make that kind of switch requires a lot of implementation and conversations with the providers as well as enrollees.

We’re particularly concerned about disrupting the physician-patient relationship, as Mr. Hunt pointed out.  Obviously, that can impact continuity and quality of care.  We frequently hear from physicians that they aren’t able to participate in managed care plans because reimbursement rates are sometimes so low they don’t even cover the cost of providing the care, or they don’t have the resources in their offices to deal with all the administrative hoops that they need to jump through in order to get reimbursed.


Surely many of those 800,000 people who will be put into managed care, including the over half a million aged, blind, and disabled, will then sever their relationships with their current providers.  For someone with high healthcare needs, that can be very disruptive to the quality of care that they’re receiving.  You can imagine an older person who’s been seeing their provider for over a decade suddenly is required to switch to a new provider—a provider that doesn’t know their medical history, doesn’t know their concerns, doesn’t know the name of their kids.  That’s part of providing good care as well.


We’re also concerned about limiting access to care.  As I said, many physicians can’t participate or aren’t willing to participate in managed care because of low compensation and administrative hassles.  So, we’re already seeing physicians dropping out of managed care plans.  In some counties, physicians tell us that even though fee-for-service rates in Medi-Cal are very low, that access to physicians through fee-for-service is still better than through managed care.  Even when a specialist is available, a patient may have to wait some time to see a specialist because that specialist is booked, not in the network, or because they have to get a referral from their primary care provider first.  So, for someone with a severe health need, it’s not only an inconvenience, it can really mean additional hospitalization or even worse.


As a real-life example, last week Dr. Maizer, our San Diego physician, testified before the Budget subcommittee.  He sees both fee-for-service and managed care patients, and he spoke to the committee about why, in his twenty years of experience, it makes him very skeptical that the Administration’s proposal is going to live up to its own objective of improving healthcare access and outcomes.  He talked about how some of his patients have to travel twenty miles off and on the bus to see a specialist because they are assigned to a primary care physician near their home that has no specialty contracts with people in their local area.  He talked about needing to obtain a consultation with a neurologist or an oral surgeon and there’s not one in the immediate area.  


He also told a story that I’d like to share with this committee that illuminates the potential problems resulting from the complex arrangements of managed care.


Two days before Christmas, a patient he was referred to from a clinic, he assessed them and determined that they had a high white blood cell count and other signs of leukemic crisis.  He sent this patient to a managed care clinic to get blood work done as soon as possible.  The clinic didn’t see the patient right away, and so the patient went back to Dr. Maizer.  By that time, the patient had an enlarged liver and spleen, so Dr. Maizer sent him back to the clinic to be seen and have work done stat.  About four hours passed at the clinic before they even realized that they didn’t have an oncologist in the network to help him.  This patient was then finally seen in an emergency room, which, as you know, is the most inefficient use of resources.  Had Dr. Maizer been in a fee-for-service system, he would have been able to order the blood work and refer his patient to an oncologist, who would have been happy to see him.


So, in conclusion, we would urge the committee to reject the Governor’s proposal.  We don’t think that it protects timely access to care or the physician-patient relationship.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Question from Senator Chesbro.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Well, I want to ask Stan a question, but then I want to come back to Ms. Folberg.


Stan, what are the Administration’s thoughts when specialty care is not available within the managed care plan, like in the example that Ms. Folberg’s raised?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Actually, specialty care, I think, for all of us now is becoming more and more of a problem.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Yes, but for this population, it seems to me . . .

MR. ROSENSTEIN:  It’s very critical.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I mean, you or I have a little better ability to get in the car and figure out how to cope with the failures of managed care, but obviously, a more vulnerable population has less ability to cope with that.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Under manage care, we have a contractual mandate for the plan to provide access to specialty care.  The plans have to submit to us quarterly who their specialists are under contract and who’s accessible.  So, there is a mandate.  People who can’t get access can go to the plan; they can go to Department of Managed Health Care; they can come to our department ombudsman.


Under the fee-for-service program, there is no mandate.  We’re blessed when we have access to a specialist in an area.  If we don’t have access to a specialist, then the beneficiary’s option, under the fee-for-service program, really is what the doctor can refer or, I’m sorry to say it, the Yellow Pages, because there’s no place to go under the fee-for-service program.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  What does the department do to follow up on those reports from the . . . 


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  In terms of the managed care?


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Yes.  I mean, presumably in the case that was cited, the managed care organization is not providing adequate access to specialty care.  So, how would the department know about that, and what would they do about it?

MR. RICO:  Cases like this could be discovered in several ways.  One of them would be the contact that the member would have directly with the office and the ombudsman.  Those cases, if they’re going to be elevated as a state fair hearing, it’ll take its own course.  However, those cases are also referred to our Medi-Cal’s monitoring staff who will contact the health plans and work directly with them to find out what the situation is.  They have a responsibility under the contracts to make specialty care—and any access to care—available.  So, that is one avenue that we have.

There will be contacts made directly from the health plan to us as well when there are issues with specialty care or access to specialty care, and we will work with them, and they will work with the member to try to make that happen.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Well, it’s at least enough of an issue that the California Medical Association is bringing it in front of us.  So, it seems to me that it’s one that you’re going to need to address and satisfy sufficiently, as far as the process.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  And there are more options under managed care, to be real honest, than there is under fee-for-service.  The Department of Managed Health Care has the patient advocate.  They have a 24-hour-a-day hotline that people can go to.  The fee-for-service program, regretfully, and I wish we had more, doesn’t have any of that.  I think the Sacramento report was a good example where the beneficiary advocacy group’s Health Right’s Hotline actually concluded that access under managed care in Sacramento was better than under the fee-for-service program.  So, I think it’s telling when an advocacy group makes that conclusion.

SENATOR CHESBRO:  Ms. Folberg, are we dealing with the lesser of evils here?  I mean, is the problem that you’ve brought one that, from the standpoint of the Medical Association, is actually worse under fee-for-service and gets somewhat less bad?  The definition of “good” these days, by the way, is “less bad.”  Somewhat less bad than under fee-for-service?

MS. FOLBERG:  Well, certainly, we believe that the reimbursement rates under fee-for-service are unreasonably low as well, but I think you have compounded issues in managed care because people are sort of stuck in these networks.  So, you have a huge access to service this issue as well.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Well, that leads me to the other question I was going to ask you.  Although you gave the specific example in San Diego, the comments you’ve made are very broad and general.  Do they apply equally to the different types of managed care systems here?


Let me just tell you where I’m coming from.  Spending some time with the Partnership Plan and hearing from doctors who are part of that, there’s a very, at least from those specific physicians—I don’t know how widespread it is—there’s a different perception than the one you’re describing.  So, I’m assuming that it’s different in different systems, and some of the problems are specific to certain systems around the state.


MS. FOLBERG:  And as I said, we’ve seen very successful managed care models in San Diego County.  There’s some successful models happening there, and we’ve been supportive of those county-generated models.  But what this proposal is doing is applying managed care across the board to aged, blind, and disabled to thirteen new counties with no Medi-Cal managed care experience, and that’s what we’re really concerned about.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay.  But it would be not necessarily an indictment of the entire concept, but rather, to point out that there’s some real problems that have to be addressed in order for it to be successful.  Is that a fair characterization?


MS. FOLBERG:  Yes.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Thank you.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  But I think you’d find—and Mike’s probably got a good example—but the Partnership or the other County Organized Health Systems pay their specialists probably substantially more than the Medi-Cal fee-for-service program pays.  And I don’t know if Mike wants to comment on that.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  If you would briefly comment because we’ve got one more speaker on this panel.


MR. MURRAY:  I would say, because we are responsible for inpatient and other services, if we reduce inpatient stays, the money doesn’t go back to Baltimore or wherever, but it stays in the community, and we reassign it.  We emphasize primary care, pay OB’s more, other specialists more.  In so doing, you change the incentive.  Just as was raised as a question of our incentive—to put ________ inpatient days so you get disproportionate share payments—ours is to get better care and better use of the limited resources you have.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for that clarification.


With that, let me have the final speaker give her presentation, and then we’ll move on to the next set.


Welcome.


MS. BARBARA GLASER:  Thank you, Madam Chair and members.  Barbara Glaser with the California Hospital Association.


When the committee invited us to speak today—and I want to thank you for that—you asked us to talk about some of the advantages of managed care from the hospitals’ perspective as well as the disadvantages, so I’d like to begin my remarks today by talking about some of the advantages.


Certainly, the provider enrollment process is more efficient and time-sensitive under managed care.  With medical case management, hospitals don’t have to spend as much time doing authorization requests, and that saves us time and energy on that front.  There is generally better coordination of home and community-based services.  There’s certainly a potential for cost savings due to managing the illness.  There is also in many instances better coordination of medical care by the healthcare professionals.  Now, in some areas there is better access to specialists.  On the flip side, I think the opposite is true in other areas.  In some areas, greater access to physicians certainly translates into better utilization and preventive care and fewer trips to the emergency room.  And all of those are very good things, and I think all of those are the things we see when managed care is working the way we all envision it to.


Now, on the opposite side, some of the disadvantages from the hospital perspective are the rates.  Rates can be inadequate.  We sometimes experience delay in reimbursement.  When you’ve already got a low rate, coupled with the delay, that further reduces the reimbursement.


In some areas there simply are inadequate provider networks.  There is, in our opinion, a lack of appropriate oversight by the Department of Health Services and the Department of Managed Health Care.  For example, requirements that safety net providers receive preferential access to contracts—we don’t see oversight in this area.  In some areas our rural hospitals feel shut out from the process.


Continuity of care is a concern, as a plan may move into an area and then move out of a Geographic area.  There can be on the hospital’s part increased administrative costs when claims are not processed timely and electronically.  And I’d also like to point out that some of the costs in healthcare, such as increasing costs of technology, cannot be contained merely be transition to managed care, and I think we all have to recognize that.


In summary, CHA believes that any initiative to redesign Medi-Cal by expanding managed care must be done thoughtfully and carefully to ensure that neither this vulnerable population nor the providers that serve them are adversely impacted.  The considerations, especially when expanding managed care, include, number one, appropriate networks in place for the population and their needs; adequate provider reimbursement rates for all providers—otherwise, we’re going to lose them—and oversight by the state to ensure compliance with regulations.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Ms. Glaser.  Any questions of this witness?

Welcome, Senator Figueroa.


Thank you all.  I appreciate it.  


Mr. Rosenstein, you obviously have the great honor of sitting on every panel, so you should stay seated.  


Let me ask those who are participating in the “Premiums” panel to come forward.  That would include Ms. Gilliard from the Western Center on Law and Poverty, as well as Deena Lahn and Dr. Richard Pan.


Welcome.


Let me ask Mr. Rosenstein to begin.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Actually, I’m going to tag team it and introduce Rene Mollow, who will do the discussion on this item.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Welcome, Ms. Mollow.


MS. RENE MOLLOW:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair and committee members.  I’d to thank you for the opportunity today to present the Medi-Cal redesign premium proposal.  

The premium requirements that we’re looking to implement through the Medi-Cal redesign are consistent with premium requirements that we see through private health insurance today and public programs that serve low-income individuals, such as the Healthy Families program and the county-based Healthy Kids programs.  These programs do serve some individuals that are similarly situated with those individuals that are on the Medi-Cal program.  The implementation of the premiums does align the cost-sharing principles of these programs with employer-based programs and the private-public health programs that we see, again, in the Healthy Families program or some of the county-sponsored programs.


Also taken into consideration with the use of the premiums is that we believe that there is increased ownership and a sense of personal responsibility that one may have when they participate in terms of financial participation in their healthcare program versus being a recipient of welfare.


In looking at the Medi-Cal redesign proposal, we’re proposing to establish monthly premiums on four individuals based upon their income levels.  In terms of families and children, the income levels that we are seeking to impose premiums on are for individuals that have incomes above 100 percent of the federal poverty level.  This amounts to about $1,306 a month for a family of three, or approximately $15,000 a year for individuals.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me make sure I understand.  For a family of three, a mother with two children that has a combined income source or grant of $1,300 a month, would be required to pay how much for a monthly premium?


MS. MOLLOW:  In terms of the premiums, the premium amount for a child would be $4 a month, and then for the adult it would be $10 a month, and for a family it would be $27 a month maximum.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, in the case of the example of a mother with two children, it would be $18 a month.


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Obviously, this is going to be a point of discussion because there are many of us who believe that even that, what appears to be a modest assessment, of course, is really, given the cost of living and the rental income and buses and clothes, shoes for children and food, is simply going to result in the mother not being able to find that $18 a month because they’re already $40 overextended or $100 overextended.  So, I just want to reiterate that point, but go on.


MS. MOLLOW:  And the premiums are based upon the premiums that are currently in place with the Healthy Families program.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But Healthy Families families are double the federal poverty level in terms of eligibility?

MR. ROSENSTEIN:  They start at the same level, actually.  So, they’ll start at 100 percent, which this proposal starts at, and it’s the same income level—$4—for people in Healthy Families.  So, if you have a child at 100 percent, under five, in Medi-Cal today, you don’t pay a premium.  If your child is seven in Healthy Families—same income—you’re paying a premium today.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Healthy Families starts at 133.  Let us not confuse ourselves.  It is not 100 percent of poverty to be in Healthy Families.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  For children six to eighteen, it starts at 100 percent.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Which we’ve had a dismal enrollment rate, but we know the challenges of even accessing.  It’s the very, very, poor and the very, very, very poor.


Please continue.  I know you want to do your presentation, and we’ll hold off on questions.


MS. MOLLOW:  For seniors and persons with disabilities, those individuals that would have incomes above the Supplemental Security Income level would be required to pay a premium.  Based upon the January 1, 2005 levels, that would be $805 a month for a single individual and then $1,422 a month for a couple.  The premiums would be required for these individuals who meet these monthly income requirements, whether the individual is receiving Medi-Cal and fee-for-service or under managed care.  

In the handouts that you do have, we do have a chart that demonstrates the actual impact on premium payments and income levels.  And again, this is the worst-case scenario in terms of looking at a person starting from 100 percent and then having to pay premiums.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can I ask you to direct us to the handout on the point you just made?  


MS. MOLLOW:  It’s at the back of the one with the maps.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Will you go back and reiterate the point you made regarding the premiums and the eligibility levels?


MS. MOLLOW:  In looking at the premiums and looking at the starting level for where premiums would be required for a family at either 100 percent or at the SSI/SSP level for individuals above those amounts, the worst-case scenario—the impact of having to pay premiums—would impact their yearly household income by approximately 1 to 2 percent, depending upon the income level that the person falls under.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can you give me a tangible amount?  One percent when you have zero is a pretty significant, actual out-of-pocket cost.  What does that mean, that one percent in a family?


MS. MOLLOW:  For a family of three, if they had a yearly income amount of, say, $15,684, then yearly they would pay $216 for premiums.  


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  A family at zero would not pay a premium.  A family at 99 percent of poverty would not pay a premium under the proposal.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the threshold’s 100 percent.


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.  The threshold is 100 percent and above.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Yes, but it’s federal poverty level, not California poverty level.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You can see we feel strongly about this, but go ahead.


MS. MOLLOW:  Understood.  And there would be certain individuals that would be exempt from premiums, and this would be individuals under the age of one and Alaskan natives and American Indians.  Also, individuals that have share-of-cost Medi-Cal would not be required to pay premiums.  As their income level goes up even higher and they participate in the Medi-Cal share-of-cost program, they would not be _____________ premiums.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  That makes sense.


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I mean, that first cut is a difficult financial challenge, and then to exacerbate it with another tier—but go ahead.


MS. MOLLOW:  In terms of the premiums, we do estimate that the number of individuals impacted for nondisabled adults and children, it’s approximately 460,000 individuals.  And then for seniors and persons living with disabilities, it’s approximately 90,000 individuals that would be required to pay premiums.


In terms of the implementation of the premium program, in large part we’re going to be building that on the Healthy Families model, and this would include that the counties would do eligibility determinations for Medi-Cal as they do now, and then they would also do an eligibility determination to determine who would have to be subjected to paying the premiums.  And this eligibility determination would commence in January 2006 with the redeterminations that occur during that time period.


We’re also seeking to secure a vendor that would be used for the premium collections, and then the vendor would send out monthly bills for individuals that had to pay the premiums, and they would also do the collection.  They would also do updating to meds.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think there’s a question.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Two.  I’m looking at your numbers here.  All your savings are based on the theory that 100,000 people will not qualify anymore because they won’t pay these premiums.  Right?  Give or take?


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  It’s interesting, juxtaposed with the prior panel—and maybe one of them wants to comment later on this—but how on earth do you expect people to do managed care with people dropping on and off the rolls every month?


MS. MOLLOW:  We see that today in Medi-Cal with people coming in and off of the program for various reasons.  That happens today.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  But at this level?  I mean, I think you’re talking about expanding that universe dramatically, and you’re asking people, on the other hand, to put more folks in managed care, and you’re going to make the managed care providers. . . . I mean, the cost of them enrolling and disenrolling these people every month seems to me would be greater than any amount of premium that you could possibly collect.  And so, I’m just wondering—and I know you may not have it today—but it seems to me, before we get too far down the budget process, we’re going to want to see numbers that tell us the administrative cost of this, because every provider I’ve talked to thinks it costs more to collect than it’s worth.  And how much you want to pay a vendor on top of that—I mean, that’s just way out there.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  There is a cost to collection, no question.  The _________ gets to as Medi-Cal is expanded.  Four years ago, this population, many wouldn’t even qualify for Medi-Cal, or they’d be paying a very large share-of-cost.  As you look at healthcare expansions and coverage, the general concept is, as you move further up the income levels, it becomes a government contribution and a personal contribution.  Medi-Cal is the one exception to that, where there’s no real personal contribution.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  But there is a share-of-cost program.  You just said so.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  But that’s at incomes substantially above this level.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  How substantially?  One-fifty, two hundred?  What?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Well, for aged, blind, and disabled, it would be people who are above, about, 129 percent.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Oh, well.  They make $16,000 a year instead of fifteen.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  In 1999—or 2000—people who were aged, blind, and disabled, who had 80 percent of income, were paying a Medi-Cal share-of-cost, so we did a very large expansion of the population in 2001.  And now people are paying very, very large shares-of-cost because Medi-Cal share-of-cost is very large.  Now the proposal is, in order to help maintain the program, to ask people to pay a $10 contribution.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  I get where you want to go, but I think your proposal does the opposite of what you want to do, because I think what you’re going to do is destabilize the healthcare system.  And the discussion that was earlier, where you won’t have hospitals, and you won’t have doctors, and you won’t have managed care, is going to make it more costly because, really, what you’re trying to do is cost-shift to the counties for unreimbursed care, which they don’t have the money either.  So, basically, you’re cost-shifting to the hospitals and to the clinics of the managed care plans to just not get paid because somebody’s still going to want to go to a doctor, and they’re going to show up at the clinic, and they’re going to show up at UCSD hospital, and they’re going to get served, and that hospital and the clinic aren’t going to get paid, and sooner or later I’m not going to have a hospital left.  That’s where I think you’re going with this.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox has a question.  I’m not sure how far along you are on your presentation, but we’ll allow you to finish after Senator Cox’s question.


MS. MOLLOW:  Okay, thank you.


SENATOR DAVE COX:  Madam Chair, thank you.  Is this the appropriate time for me to ask for input from the LAO relative to cost-sharing?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  LAO is not on the panel here.  Oh, I’m sorry, they’re here.  Well, let me invite Dan to come forward.  Let’s have you come forward, if you don’t mind, and be available to answer Senator Cox’s question.


We’ll come back to you, Ms. Mollow, after this question.  I assume it’s relevant on the discussion.


MR. DAN CARSON(?):  And I’ll ask Kirk Feely of my staff who is lead for us on the question of premiums.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Cox?


SENATOR COX:  Certainly, Madam Chair, from my standpoint it’s relevant, but I’m not sure anybody else would.  I’m interested to know, relative to the current cost-sharing proposals, whether or not. . . . can you give us some statistics relative to the cost-sharing of the proposal that’s being made now?  The Governor’s proposal.  Percentage of income; per capita cost.


MR. CARSON:  I’m not Kirk Feely from the Leg. Analyst.  I’m not sure I have all the statistics you’re interested in.  The Administration did note in their estimate the premiums would represent 1 to 2 percent of the affected families’ income.


SENATOR COX:  And what’s the cost on average without Medi-Cal cost-sharing?


MR. CARSON:  We did cite in our analysis a study that had indicated that certain low-income families spend about 7 percent of their income on healthcare, and we also noted the percentage of spending on other things, such as entertainment, apparel, and other miscellaneous items.


SENATOR COX:  The Governor’s proposal is not 7 percent but 1 or 2 percent?


MR. CARSON:  That is our understanding of the Governor’s proposal, yes.


SENATOR COX:  And you read the Governor’s proposal?  Is that a reasonable assumption?


MR. CARSON:  Based on those comparisons, yes, I think we feel that is a reasonable assumption.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re welcome.


Let’s have Ms. Mollow continue and finish her presentation, and then if there are other questions regarding the LAO assumptions, let’s allow her to make her presentation first.


MS. MOLLOW:  Okay, thank you, Madam Chair.


In closing, I just wanted to also indicate that in looking at using the premiums, we would look at a variety of methods in which payments could be made for the premiums and how the vendor could collect those payments—again, similar to the Healthy Families program—and that sponsors would be allowed to provide the premium payments on behalf of the beneficiaries.  And depending upon the payment of premiums and how those premiums may be made, such as electronic fund transfers or paying three months in advance, then a discount would be provided.


There is, as we have discussed earlier, the impacts of disenrollments, and we do believe that in terms of the disenrollment, that there’ll be approximately 100,000 individuals that would be disenrolled for nonpayment of premiums.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Well, I . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think we all want to jump out at that.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Well, I just want to know how much it costs to care for them when they’re disenrolled.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask the question as well.  I mean, I think the argument is that it’s hard for us to understand how a program that may be 1 to 2 percent of the cost of these families—which we’ve already determined are very, very, very, very poor; otherwise, they don’t qualify for the program—why we’re going to consider a mechanism to provide better care by creating a system that anticipates their inability to pay at 100,000 individuals and that that somehow is an accounting mechanism that suggests progress, because we know that when they’re sick, they then go into a more expensive, acute emergency care situation.  That, I think, is what troubles me.  

We understand 100,000 individuals are not going to be able to continue in a healthcare program because they can’t come up with the $18 a month.  Again, let me just reiterate:  Under the Medi-Cal scenario, 75 percent of these families are working poor.  Is that correct?

MS. MOLLOW:  Yes, they are.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the other 25 percent are aged, blind, and disabled.


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And those are the families that if they’re working—and they have to prove on a periodic basis that they truly are working; otherwise, they don’t get to stay in the program—that it is conceivable that they cannot come up with the monthly premium, and they’re going to fall out.  Gee, we’re going to disenroll 100,000—mostly children—and that’s somehow an improvement in the system?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  One of the things we’re struggling with, and an important part, is how to maintain a Medi-Cal program that has grown, that covers large populations who. . . . you know, the county programs, for example, if you look at those, charge premiums at lower income levels.  Just to use another benchmark, we’re looking at a 2 percent premium.  If you look at Prop. 72 (SB2), for people who wouldn’t qualify for Medi-Cal, that cap was at 5 percent of income.  So, we think a 2 percent contribution, in order to maintain eligibility levels, is an appropriate level of contribution for people to stay on a very, very valuable program.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  I guess the problem we’re having with it is, your own assumptions are that 100,000 people will not pay this premium.  Therefore, you’re basically shifting the care of that 100,000 people to unreimbursed care on hospitals and counties.  I mean, you’re basically saying, We’re going to disenroll 100,000 people.  That’s what we assume because you’re saying, It’s a real low amount, but we think 100,000 people won’t pay it, and therefore, you’re really shifting the cost of their care out of something like managed care—which might actually do preventative things and be more cost-effective for the system—and throwing it over to the hospitals and the counties and saying, You all pay for it because we’re going to disenroll them from Medi-Cal.  I mean, that’s where we’re having a problem.

MR. ROSENSTEIN:  I understand, and just to clarify the numbers a little bit, our assumption is that 20 percent of the people will drop out for not paying.  We’re only assuming that 5 percent of the cost will reduce, because we’re assuming that the people who will stop paying by and large are low-cost users of services. 


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Until they need an emergency room, and in one fell swoop, one day in the emergency room, they will make up the whole year’s worth.  I mean, they will negate any possible savings, in terms of the system as a whole, one visit to the emergency room during the year because they decide to forego the $18 on the theory that We’re all healthy this week.  You know, that was in January, and in September, the kid gets hurt, they show up in the emergency room.  You’ve now spent $500 because you were trying to collect the $120.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Before you answer, Mr. Rosenstein, let me allow Senator Runner to weigh in.


SENATOR GEORGE RUNNER:  Real quick.  At least in my hospitals, when they’re in that process, somebody comes in and they would qualify.  The hospitals that are in my district mostly then go ahead and put them through the enrollment process at that point.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s great because not all hospitals can.


SENATOR RUNNER:  So, at that point they’re not going to be, at least in the hospitals that I’m dealing with oftentimes in my discussions with them, they’re not going to be at the cost of an uninsured indigent.  They are going to be actually reenrolled in the program if they chose to let it lapse.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  That’s correct, and that’s why we’ve assumed such a low expenditure reduction is that we assume people with high-cost services will be back enrolled in Medi-Cal and the hospitals will get reimbursed.  That’s why the savings on this proposal is very low.


SENATOR RUNNER:  Okay, thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Had you finished your presentation?


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes, I had.  Thank you. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  Are there any other questions of this witness?


Let’s go ahead and have our next witness.  We’re going to hear from the advocates.  We have  Ms. Gilliard.


Angela, welcome.

MS. ANGELA GILLIARD:  Thank you.  I’m Angela Gilliard.  I’m the legislative advocate with Western Center on Law and Poverty.  Western Center’s a nonprofit legal support services organization.  

Many of the legal aid organizations talked about in a previous panel of managed care are part of a collaborative called the Health Consumer Alliance, of which Western Center’s a part of.  And I just might add that even though we’re speaking today specifically to premiums, we definitely have input into the managed care proposal, as well as the Single Point of Entry, as well as the dental cap, and as well as the hospital financing proposal.  But we were asked to speak today to premiums.  Actually, I do have testimony to submit for the Single Point of Entry.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ll go ahead and make sure that that’s shared with all members.  It may be up here already.  I believe we have it.


MS. GILLIARD:  That’s for the premium.  I do have something else at the end for Single Point of Entry.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  We’re going to have the sergeants go ahead and grab that.  Please continue so we don’t run out of your time.


I would like the committee to know six categories of reasons why the Governor’s plan to impose premiums on Medicaid beneficiaries is problematic.

First, imposing premiums causes people to fall off of the program, which makes them uninsured and disconnects them from vital healthcare.  Before my testimony there was pretty rigorous conversation about that impact, so I won’t go into that.  But that is an issue.


Second, the persons who would lose coverage by falling off of Medi-Cal are the families that were supposed to be protected as a result of welfare reform to keep them from sliding back to welfare.  In 1996, welfare reform separated cash assistance from medical assistance to offer a no-cost health coverage to low-income families and children.  Many of the people who became eligible in California became eligible as a result of welfare reform.  Many people who became eligible were married people who were not eligible prior to welfare reform.


The third point I’d like to make is the Medicaid program is more cost-efficient than private coverage.  There is great effort, I think, to make the Medi-Cal program look like a private health coverage model, and there are significant differences.  But even with the significant differences and with the low cost of the current Medi-Cal program, Medi-Cal is still doing better fiscally, I think, in terms of the rate of growth and the cost than private coverage.  So, I don’t know why we would want to make it look like private coverage since that is more expensive.


The fourth point I would like to make is imposing premiums on Medi-Cal beneficiaries is legally problematic for several reasons.  One is the federal cost-sharing rules.  Congress enacted a very precise federal statutory scheme in the Medicaid Act to prescribe which Medicaid beneficiary premiums can be imposed upon, at what income levels, and what amounts.  Nothing in the Social Security Act, of which the Medicaid Act is a part, allows states to waive these provisions and limitations.  In addition, federal regulations implementing the Medicaid Act further prohibit premiums or any similar charges from being imposed upon beneficiaries beyond a nominal amount.  We don’t believe that the amounts proposed by the state are considered nominal amounts. 


Second, in this category of legally problematic, imposing premiums on Medi-Cal beneficiaries will likely violate state and federal protections regarding retention; for example, SB 87, TMC (which is Transitional Medi-Cal), continuous eligibility for children, deemed eligibility, abridging rules, and other retention requirements.

Also, legally problematic is imposing premiums on Medi-Cal beneficiaries may violate due process protections.  Medicaid beneficiaries are entitled to due process protections under the federal Constitution as well as the Medicaid Act and its implementing regulations.  Beneficiaries have fair hearing rights on any adverse action denying, terminating, or reducing benefits.  There are a myriad of questions with respect to due process rights.  If a beneficiary requests a hearing prior to the date of termination, reduction, or imposition of a premium, she or he would be entitled to (quote) “Aid Paid Pending, [pending] the outcome of the hearing.”  So, they would legally not be able to be disconnected.  And how would Aid Paid Pending be preserved?  Also, how would Notice of Action be revised to clarify what rights a person has to challenge a termination due to failure to pay premiums?  

Next, what safeguards will be in place to ensure no one is terminated for nonpayment of premiums where good cause exists to reverse the termination? 


And next, will revenue from collection of premiums outweigh costs from conducting hearings, granting Aid Paid Pending, and rescinding wrongful termination?


Next, and fifth in my points, is imposing premiums on Medi-Cal beneficiaries is not eligibility simplification; it is eligibility complication and will increase costs, confusions, errors, and create more barriers to eligibility.  There is a problem of churning that is eloquently described in the Senate Budget analysis on churning which has a cost in and of itself.  That’s when someone goes off and they come back on, and they go off and they come back on.  And in that churning, there is an issue of how do you deal with retroactive eligibility pursuant to federal law?  A Medicaid applicant has 90 days at retroactive eligibility.  Under the Governor’s proposal, the termination would be after 60 days, but that person could apply today and have 90 days paid.  So, that doesn’t seem to be cost-efficient.  That’s federal law; you can’t change that.  Not in this state anyway.


Increasing premiums will increase administrative procedures from a one-step process to a five-step process.  The first process now is, and the first question now currently asked is:  Is a person eligible?  Under the Governor’s proposal, the eligibility worker will have to ask four additional questions, and that would be:  Is the person eligible for Medi-Cal without a premium?  Has a person paid the premium?  What impact does payment or nonpayment have on eligibility?  And how does a person get back on Medi-Cal when terminated incorrectly or moved to a different category based on imposition of premiums?


The current state of the law requires counties before terminating a beneficiary to look at any other category that they may qualify for.  And so, that means that if they’re in a current category that requires a premium, before you can terminate them you have to look to see if there’s some other category.  Transitional Medi-Cal, for example, would be another category that that person would be eligible for without cost.  So, these are all, really, administrative and legal roadblocks, some that cannot be surmounted by the current proposal.


Lastly, imposing premiums will reduce eligibility.  Eliminating earned income disregards the way that eligibility is reduced.  The method of supporting working families is to allow them to disregard substantial portions of their earnings to become and remain eligible.  These disregards—or deductions—reward earnings and encourage families to increase their stability, providing them with no-cost healthcare as they get on their feet.  Today a family can deduct $240 of their earnings plus half of remaining earned income.  Under the proposal, these disregards would not be available for purposes of determining who owes a premium.  A family could only deduct $90 of earnings, and if income exceeded 100 percent of the federal poverty level, they would owe premiums.


For example, today a family of three earning up to $1,826 a month can get no-cost Medi-Cal under their recipient income test, if they have no other deductions.  Under the proposal, the same family would have to have an income under $1,396 to get no-cost Medi-Cal.  This amounts to a $430 cut to the income eligibility limit for no-cost Medi-Cal for these working families.


The underlying purpose of Section 1931(b) Medicaid is to support working families as they become financially stable and establish themselves in the workforce by providing no-cost healthcare when they need it most.  Imposing premiums on this population who, by definition, get Medi-Cal at no cost today will erode the most basic building block of welfare reform and family support.

Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Ms. Gilliard.


Any questions from committee members?


Senator Runner.


SENATOR RUNNER:  Real quick question.  Believe me, I’ve got great concerns over the lack of detail in the process of implementing the issue in regards to how it is that just the process itself may eat up a great deal of the savings.  And so, I’m going to make one comment, and then I’m going to ask the Administration where they are in regards to at least trying to get their arms around some of these administrative challenges that have just been outlined.


Let me just say that I appreciate the concern in regards to this becoming more like a private insurance.  Although, let me tell you, in my point of view, this is far from any kind of private insurance.  I mean, if the only reason why this appears to be more toward a private insurance model is because somebody is paying a premium, let me tell you, the biggest difference as to why this is not like private insurance is that when it is that I go _________ with my insurance and decide not to have it, I can’t check into the hospital and then reenroll in my insurance plan as I can within this model, that at least the Administration has in mind.  I don’t necessarily believe just because there’s a premium involved, some kind of a sharing of payment, that this becomes like a private model—for that main reason. 


But I do think that the concerns in regards to the implementation are very real.  And even though I may have concerns, as I talked about earlier, the fact that people can reenroll at the point when they come in, I do have concerns about the administrative cost of that constant reenrolling, then, from when it is that they drop out.


MS. GILLIARD:  Can I just quickly respond?


SENATOR RUNNER:  Sure.


MS. GILLIARD:  Many of the people who are disenrolled may not be able to come back on.  That’s one thing.  But the other thing is, it’s not my characterization or intent to say that Medi-Cal is like a private health coverage program.  I think that’s something that the Administration and others have said.  We are making the difference that this actually is not.


I am curious—and maybe we can have a conversation later about hospitals that enroll—that under this new proposal, the hospital would then have to determine whether or not the person had a share-of-cost and not whether they were eligible, and that would be a different procedure altogether.  


I mean, I’ll let you go ahead and have a conversation about that.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’re concerned, too, about the administrative complexity.  There is an administrative complexity in determining this proposal.  It’s really not going to be a five-step process for the counties; it’s a two-step process.  The county will have to decide, Are you eligible or not?  And then, if you’re eligible, Does your income exceed 100 percent of poverty or the SSI level for aged, blind, and disabled?  

Say that you’re eligible with a premium.  Our proposal is to have a vendor do the premium collection and administer it; not put that burden on the county.  The vendors can do it a little cheaper, easier.  I mean, this has all been vetted(?) and done for the Healthy Families program.  If a person fails to pay and is disenrolled after sixty days, they’re not losing their eligibility; they’re losing their coverage.  I mean, it is a little different.  They could just typically start paying their coverage again if they come within the next six months and pay their premiums.  They get back on the program.  It’s not a reapplication process.  

We’ve gone to efforts to try to simplify it as much as we can.  It is a more complicated process, we wouldn’t dispute that, but it’s not a five-step process.  It’s a two-step process, and it’s a vendor doing the collections of the premiums.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  All right.  Questions from other committee members?


Just a quick question, Mr. Rosenstein.  Do you concur with the interpretation that we’re precluded under the federal scheme of allowing this passive disenrollment, that there needs to be procedural due process?  Of course, the reality is, however, that most of the beneficiaries will not know about the right to procedural due process and a hearing to affirmatively disenroll.  But is it your interpretation that we’re precluded under federal law from allowing this disenrollment to occur without a hearing?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  The federal law, as written today, precludes a number of parts of our proposal, as Angela presented.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Wait a minute.  Let me make sure I understand.  You’re acknowledging . . . 


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’re proposing a federal waiver to waive those statutes.  The proposal is, really, not to reinvent the premium collection wheel but to follow the model that’s being done for Healthy Families today.  It would change the fair hearing right.  It would not provide a fair hearing right for not paying the premium.  It would be disenrollment just like Healthy Families does today.  So, we would propose to waive that rule as well as a number of other rules.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me make sure I understand.  One, you acknowledge that what we’re proposing right now is pending federal approval that we do this.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  It would require federal approval.  We have not requested federal approval.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We haven’t sought it yet?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We have not sought it.  We believe everything we’re proposing is approvable under an 1115 waiver.  We’ve not submitted that request.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  So, let me make sure I understand.  We’re attempting to move this huge ship in a direction this legislative session with significant questions under federal law, but we’ve not commenced the authorization from the federal government to do this?  At what point are we proposing to do this, by the way?  Because federal waivers take forever.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  This would be an 1115 waiver.  I don’t think it would take forever.  We found that the federal government will move these types of waivers fairly rapidly.  We believe everything—and we did quite a bit of research—is waiverable under an 1115 waiver.  It has not been submitted.  We didn’t want to presume . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Have there been verbal communications with the federal government?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’ve had communications with the federal government.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Have you been in communication—email discussions?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes, I’ve had discussions with the federal government on the Medi-Cal redesign, but we’ve not presumed that it’s approved or supposed anything.  We’ve kept them informed.  We’ve checked the federal rules, so we understand what the federal rules are.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Which other states, if any, are imposing premiums, and which states are doing what we’re proposing to do for Medi-Cal in California? 


MS. MOLLOW:  There have been a number of states.  There was Oregon that had imposed premiums.  There was . . . 

SENATOR ORTIZ:  But we have that disenrollment data.


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes, we had that disenrollment data.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Frightening.


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.

MR. ROSENSTEIN:  A different population, though.


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes, a different population than what we have, but there’ve been a couple of states that have been allowed to do this, and they have had to get federal approvals in which to do this.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can LAO comment and clarify in a little more detail how many other states?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  There’s Utah, Washington . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s hear. . . . thank you, Stan.


MR. KIRK FEELY:  In our review, we noted that in the past couple of years there have apparently been over twenty states that have put in place cost-sharing of different types.  It may be co-payments; it may be premiums.  That information was mentioned from the Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And how many states are there that closely mirror. . . . I mean, I don’t want to use Wyoming as an example for California.  New York?  New Jersey?  Texas?

MR. FEELY:  There have been some other large states.  I don’t have the list on hand at the moment, but I’d be happy to provide some more of that information to you on a follow-up basis.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


Senator Ducheny?


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Just for the future hearings—and it just adds another to my list of questions on cost beyond the administrative costs that Senator Runner and I both raised—is the legal cost.  It’s like full employment for Legal Aid attorneys here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  With all due respect.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  With all due respect.  Or Western Center.  They could survive for a whole year on the legal fees off of this thing.  

I think you have to also factor in the fact that those things are going to be challenged, and there is a difference between Healthy Families premiums and Medi-Cal because Medi-Cal is an entitlement and Healthy Families is not.  At that point, somebody will sue for the waiver.  I mean, I would imagine for some of those other states, that it probably came up.  So, it’s just something else to look it.  I mean, I think it just is one more cost to the proposal, would be the lawsuits that come out of all the fair hearing discussions that would occur.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  I would agree with you this would be litigated.  We looked at co-pays, for example, and because of the litigation in other states, we did not propose any co-pay changes.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Really?  I would have thought co-pays would be easier.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, that’s a greater bar than the premium.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  I think both Oregon and Arizona lost co-pay litigation.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And I think it’s important that the members haven’t seen the disenrollment numbers in a lot of these other states.  They’re pretty troubling, but we should make sure that we get that information.  I know it’s been in our committees in the past years, and we’ve done hearings on that.


Mr. Rosenstein, did you want to finish?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes.  We were just recalling that in Oregon they imposed premiums from zero income to 100 percent of poverty.  So, they started quite a bit lower than we are proposing.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All right.


Thank you, Ms. Gilliard.


We have Ms. Lahn, who is our next speaker.  Welcome.


MS. DEENA LAHN:  I’m Deena Lahn from the Children’s Defense Fund.  We work with the Children’s Partnership and Children Now and the 100% Campaign:  Health Insurance for Every California Child.

I want to step back for one minute and just speak very briefly.  As a parent, I just want to say that I’ve a toddler and a school-age child.  No visits to the doctor are unnecessary if you go because the kid’s sick and they need treatment or you go because it’s time for their immunizations or you need to see if they need glasses so that they can see the blackboard at school.  There’s nothing that’s wasted in these visits.  So, whatever we’re doing here, if we’re moving people away from primary care visits, either they’re not going to get treated and something worse is going to happen, or they aren’t going to seek treatment elsewhere.  I just want to make that point.


And just to respond to a point that came up earlier, there are premiums in Healthy Families, and there are problems with those premiums, as I’ll speak about later.  But there’s a reason that California, like a lot of states, has had a staggered income level for Medicaid.  I know infants are exempted under this proposal, but when a child is between one and six, they have very important visits.  You don’t want them to miss those visits, which include immunizations they need to get into school, but also because the families in that income bracket with those very young children have extremely high other costs, including childcare, which we’re also looking at making harder for low-income working families.  So, the same families with very young children are not necessarily comparable with the Healthy Families older children, who I would also maintain are absolutely struggling to pay these premiums.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  We should exempt children from that age, don’t you think?


MS. LAHN:  So, I just want to make that point.  I don’t think you can say, Well, Healthy Families families are doing it at this income level.  They’re not really the same as someone with . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you know what diapers cost a week?  


MS. LAHN:  I know.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I mean, this is a legitimate criticism of that sensitive population, but go on.


MS. LAHN:  I did testify before, so I won’t go back over all my previous testimony before the Budget committee.  I’ll just hit the high points.  And I did hand out written testimony.  But I also want to address—I believe Mr. Runner stepped away—but there was some issues last time I testified about federal reimbursement that I just want to make sure I go over in some detail.


Basically, we, the Children’s Defense Fund, oppose this proposal because, first of all, it’ll take a big step backwards from where we’ve all been moving together with the Administration, which is towards fuller coverage of children in California.  We’ve actually made some pretty big progress in California in the last few years in covering children, and everyone agrees that this proposal will result in children dropping off.  So, we oppose it for that very basic reason.


But we also believe that this particular proposal is financially very inefficient because, as has already been discussed, the cost of collecting premiums for legal issues—the churning when families do reenroll on and off—we’re basically making a choice of spending money on administrative costs versus spending money on preventive care.  We just don’t think that makes a lot of sense.


Also, every time we don’t spend a dollar on Medicaid, we don’t get a dollar from the federal government.  Last time it was asked:  Can’t we get these premiums from the low-income families matched by the federal government?  We believe the answer is “No.”  So, if California goes ahead and collects $42 million of premiums from our lowest, most often working families, we’re only going to save $21 million, because $21 million of it essentially goes back to the feds.  So, we’ve saved        $21 million.  Now, on top of that, we have the huge administrative costs and a lot of foregone medical care which, as our chairs have pointed out, really results in higher cost to the safety net system.  This is actually a proposal that we do oppose in principle, but we also just don’t think makes any sense.  

The other issue that came up is about the county Healthy Kids programs that some of them do.  Not all of them impose premiums on this level, but most of them also have what’s called a “sponsorship” or a “hardship fund.”  One that we got data from, which is Santa Cruz, who kept some good data, they end up paying premiums for about 60 percent of the families with incomes below 150 percent of the federal poverty level who enroll in this local program.  Because the Healthy Kids initiatives are local, each county that chooses to do one has its own rules.  But many of them, including Santa Clara, who’s kind of the forerunner of all this, has a very healthy sponsorship program, and it’s made use of by the families.  So, I don’t think it’s quite fair to say that it’s either like Healthy Families or that it’s like the county Kids programs.


Also, I know there’s been some discussion back and forth.  DHS, actually, interestingly enough, in this proposal says, Well, we’re going to impose these premiums and get money back from our low-income working families.  We’re not going to make a lot of savings on lost medical care because they are going to be able to disenroll.  So, there’s the expense of that churning.  Layton _______, the Center on Budget and Policy Priorities, who’s looked at other states who’ve imposed premiums, has said. . . . actually, he doesn’t think as many will reenroll.  So, there’ll be more foregone medical care and possibly more savings in the sense that people aren’t getting served.  But I think we have to look at what the consequences of that is down the road.  If they are able to reenroll, as I said, then we’ve spent more money getting them off, getting them on again, and we’re not doing the good preventive care.


So, I think kind of saying, Well, if they show up in the ER, they’re going to get reenrolled, isn’t really the answer because it’s not really the kind of care that we are planning to get for them.  As well, my understanding was the families had to pay back premiums before getting reenrolled.  Is that the case?  

MS. MOLLOW:  That is correct.


MS. LAHN:  So, if you’re a family and you show up in the ER, as I had to do, for example, when my child had immunization reactions and nothing we could do anything to prevent and had to go to the ER because it was at night, let’s say they told me, Well, you’re not eligible for Medi-Cal because you haven’t paid your back premiums.  What are you going to do in that situation?  They’re going to see your kid.  It doesn’t make any sense.  You’re not going to sit there and somehow come up with six months of premiums on a 15,000-dollar-a-year salary.

So, in conclusion, as I said, I think we need to look very seriously. . . . Mr. Rosenstein mentioned saving Medi-Cal and our expansions through the imposition of premiums.  Obviously, it doesn’t make sense, I don’t think, as a healthcare issue.  It doesn’t even make sense as a fiscal issue when you’re really looking at foregoing federal funds, spending more on administration, all to put more of a burden on the very low-income working families.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  Questions?  Comments?


I would love an explanation as to the rationale for families who have not paid premiums for a period of time and want to reenroll and having to pay back.  Can you explain to me the rationale for that if they haven’t utilized the system?


MS. MOLLOW:  To come back onto the program, the disenrollment would come into place if there had been two months of nonconsecutive payment of premiums.  So, within that six-month period, from where there is nonpayment, the person could, if they had. . . . you know, like they’re explaining here, if there was a need for healthcare services and they wanted to come back into the system and reenroll, they would only be responsible for paying back those months of premiums that they had not previously paid.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right.  So, my question is, if they weren’t getting care when they were disenrolled and they now find themselves having the ability to enroll in the monthly premium, what’s the rationale for having them go back and pay the months that they weren’t enrolled but weren’t utilizing the system?


MS. MOLLOW:  It would just be for that six months.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, no, no.  You’re not listening.  The question is:  Why make them do that?  Not what is it you’re having them do, but the rationale to go back and pay when they weren’t utilizing the system.  

I believe that if they didn’t pay what is regarded as a nominal fee, it’s because they couldn’t pay, and if they couldn’t pay for five months or six months the twenty or twenty-seven dollars a month and we’re now asking them six months later to pay over a hundred-and-something dollars, is it because we’re penalizing them for not having been able to do the monthly premium in that six-month period of time when they weren’t using the system?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  It’s a basic concept of insurance coverage:  that you pay premiums every month.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But if you use the services, yes.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Like your car insurance, though.  You don’t pay your car premium only the months you have a car accident.  You pay every month.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But if you can prove you’re not driving your car and it was parked somewhere, which should be the presumption if you’re not accessing healthcare.  It’s a penalty.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  But healthcare insurance, if people only paid premiums . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’ll recognize you, Senator Cox, but I want to get the clarification.  I mean, I could understand if they proved that they accessed a system.  Even that is difficult.  But I think the reason these families don’t pay is because they truly cannot, and it’s almost a penalty . . .


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Well, they’re willing to forego for those six months.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And maybe that’s not a good policy either.


MS. MOLLOW:  But the premiums are just required on a monthly basis whether they access the services or not, because the other alternative might be they might be then at risk for having to pay for those healthcare services they’re now trying to . . . 

SENATOR ORTIZ:  [Inaudible.]


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, let me hear from Senator Cox.


SENATOR COX:  I just wanted to ask Ms. Lahn a question, if I may.  Is it your position, ma’am, that you don’t believe that any enrollee should have a share of cost?


MS. LAHN:  No.  My organization represents the interests of children, and yes, we believe that very low-income children in this category should not have to pay. . . . their families should not have to pay a premium because we believe it is more efficient and effective to have those children covered for the preventive . . . 

SENATOR COX:  So, your position is that there ought not to be any cost-sharing.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  For children.


MS. LAHN:  For children, yes.  Under current federal Medicaid law, that’s also the federal position.


SENATOR COX:  Ms. Lahn and members, as you know, I’ve been in the sales business all my life.  I find people make choices, and sometimes medical insurance is not one of the choices that they make.  While they have money for other discretionary items, they elect not to pay for medical insurance or life insurance or car insurance or homeowners insurance.  I just want to put that on the record, Madam Chair.


MS. LAHN:  I go into this in more detail in my written testimony, but there’s very little discretionary income at this income level.  That’s one issue.  But secondly, I just think we need to discuss the costs for children . . . 


SENATOR COX:  Would a cellular telephone be a discretionary purchase, or would that be a necessity?


MS. LAHN:  I’m not going to make those decisions.  I’m just saying there is very little discretionary . . . 


SENATOR COX:  No, no, no.  Just give me your best judgment.


MS. LAHN:  I’m talking about rent and food when I talk about things as necessities.  And childcare so you can get to work—and transportation.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Madam Chair, can I make . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I will, Mr. Vincent.  Let me just say, I appreciate your presentation.  I understand, Senator Cox, that your company is insurance, and I understand that philosophy of insuring and anticipating for the unanticipated makes sense.  I would argue that, indeed, some families, their only phone service, because it may be more affordable today, may be a cell phone because they can’t afford it in their home.  In many cases, that may be the only phone the family has.


Let me also argue, when you have a parent with two children—and I would suggest Senator Cox or any of us look at that option—to live on $1,200 a month in which you’re paying for food—and God forbid, the average rent in Sacramento for a two-bedroom, even in the lowest of neighborhoods, is easily a thousand dollars plus these days—and you’re feeding those two children and you don’t own a car that works, or maybe it works periodically, but you’ve got a job that is giving you those wages but has no benefits, the reality is, there are many Californians who are living as they work and they’re getting poorer and poorer.  Indeed, $27 a month or $20 a month is a make-or-break situation, and that cell phone may be their only phone service.  So, I would suggest that the choices or the lifestyle decisions for the population that we’re addressing is very different than the choices and options of others who have incomes that may make $1,200 a week.

SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Mr. Cox.


SENATOR COX:  Madam Chair, may I call to your attention page 12 of the 2005 Budget Analysis of Medicare which says that . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t know that we have that in front of us.

SENATOR COX:  Let me quote it to you.  It’s from the Legislative Analyst.  You’ll be able to get this.  It’s on page 12.  It says:  “Cost-sharing proposals:  reasonable.  The establishment of premiums is a reasonable cost containment option for the Legislature to consider.  Notably, many enrollees who would be subject to premiums were not eligible for all Medicare until eligibility of the program was expanded about five years ago.  Could these Medicare beneficiaries afford to pay premiums?  One recent study by Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured indicates that low-income families typically spend 7 percent of their income on healthcare and a combined 22 percent on entertainment, apparel, and other miscellaneous items.”  And so, I just want to put that in for the record, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And I appreciate you introducing that in the record.  Of course, we’re at a bit of a disadvantage.  I don’t know if those assumptions are based on these income levels, nor can I effectively say that what they characterize as entertainment to a single mother with two kids who pays a thousand dollars a month for rent and still doesn’t have a car, whether that is reflective of it.  So, it really goes to the question of what we did six years ago now—no, more than six—when we moved to Medi-Cal reform.  We insisted that everybody work.  They are working, and we’re ignoring the reality that these are incredibly poor and poorer families.


I understand that we have to structure these programs, but let me just reiterate:  The lifestyle decisions and the choices that are available to the families that are at, even, 100 or 200 percent of the federal poverty level are far different than any of us can ever conceive.  So, that’s my argument.


Senator Vincent?


SENATOR VINCENT:  You know, I was sitting and looking, and I hope everybody has the same document I have in front of me.  The document I have in front of me, it says, the “Governor’s Proposed Medi-Cal Redesign,” and it says this is an informational hearing.  And so, I’ve been trying to get information, and I imagine the people that you called here, Madam Chair, are people who are experts in their area.  But what I’ve heard so far is only three people really say what they think.  The rest of them have been somewhat muzzled, I guess.  The only persons I’ve heard say what they really believe was Lisa Folberg, Angela Gilliard, and Deena Lahn.  They tell how they feel.  Most of the people, I don’t know if you persons can’t say what you really feel, but actually, Senator Cox started it when he said it’s a matter of choices.  What are your choices?  I know what those three persons’ choices are.  I don’t know what the other persons’ choices are who spoke.  Senator Ducheny spoke very well.  You spoke very well where you’re coming from.  I don’t know where the rest are coming from.  I’m looking for information.  I haven’t heard much.  I mean, what is your choice?  They made choices, the three of them.  I don’t hear any choices from other ones.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me just also reiterate, as being the only legislator on this panel that doesn’t take $127 a day in per diem, I’ll tell you, if we were to give these families $127 a day that these legislators, other than myself, take—I mean, I think that’s a pretty compelling point to be made in terms of lifestyle choices.

All right.  Let’s have the next speaker come forward.


Welcome, Dr. Pan.


DR. RICHARD PAN:  Thank you.


I’m Dr. Richard Pan.  I am vice chair of Legislation, speaking on behalf of the California Medical Association.  I’m also a practicing pediatrician here in Sacramento.  I wish to express the California Medical Association’s grave concerns about the premium proposal being proposed by the Governor.

While the California Medical Association certainly understands the concept and supports in general the concept of cost-sharing as a way to contain healthcare costs, we also believe that for the Medi-Cal program and for the people being served by the Medi-Cal program—but given the definition of their income level—that it would not be an effective mechanism.  In fact, as has been cited by many of the other previous speakers, that would create more of an administrative burden on the Administration.  But I’m actually here to talk about, I think, the healthcare consequences.  I think we’ve had a lot of discussion about some of the administrative issues—how much cost it would be and so forth.  

I know we’ve talked a lot about choices here just in the past few minutes, but I think we need to think about that while one of the reasons why the state would have an interest in a Medi-Cal program is that it’s not only beneficial to the families who receive Medi-Cal, there is a benefit to all of us, the general public; that children particularly, but also other people served—the aged, blind, disabled, and so forth on the medical program—are served by Medi-Cal.


Medi-Cal itself provides preventative coverage for preventative care.  It provides for management of chronic illnesses.  In order to manage these particular illnesses or to provide effective preventative care, not including immunizations and other important services, it is important to have continuity of care.  And this is, really, where I think the core of our concern from the healthcare point of view comes in concerning the premium program.


There’ve been many studies done by many different experts that have shown that continuity of care is an essential component of quality of care.  Several Institute of Medicine reports have come out, including “Crossing the Quality Chasm,” and the definition of primary care from the IOM.  Many other expert groups have come out with statements as well about the importance of continuity of care.  With the premium program, especially when there’s an estimate that 20 percent of children under the premium program will drop out, it means that you’re going to have those children probably not receiving continuous, ongoing care.


Now, why is this important?  We’ve talked often about episodic:  Someone shows up in the emergency room, and then they end up in the hospital.  Or they show up in the emergency room and the cost of that care.  Or they get a cold and an ear infection, and they show up to a doctor’s office.  What are we supposed to do?  Who’s supposed to pay for that?  That’s certainly very important.  People have also talked about you can get emergency Medi-Cal, and there’s some quirks about how that would fit within the current proposal and so forth.  But I think we also need to look at the pattern of care overall.


Now, as a pediatrician, let me talk a little bit about what I’ve done in the past couple of days in my practice.  Yesterday, I’m seeing patients in our practice, and an important part of that is actually being able to follow a child overtime to be sure that their growth is fine, that their development is fine.  Parents come in with questions, but also, we ask questions ourselves because sometimes the parents may not notice that something is not right.  Suppose the child’s weight is falling off.  That may not necessarily be immediately evident to the parent.  Or the child isn’t quite progressing as well as they should be.  Those are things that we need to pick up on in order to try to be sure that the children receive appropriate care.  


I think there’s a lot of research that’s been coming out.  For example, I’ll pick one disease—autism—where there’s indications that doctors working with parents can, by catching it earlier, can actually mitigate many of the potential long-term effects of autism; that earlier treatment certainly benefits the children than waiting for delays in treatment.  So, again, without continuity of care, it’s more likely to have a delay in treatment.


Another thing I’ve been doing—actually, I just came from a meeting with the school nurses at our local school district.  I’ve been working on a project with them to coordinate care for children who are having behavioral problems in school.  These are children who are having tremendous difficulty in school because of various behavioral problems, and they need access to mental health and other types of healthcare.  One thing we notice is that in trying to work with the school nurses, the children who don’t have a regular source of care, who don’t have insurance, who aren’t accessing their coverage, are not getting the help that they need so they can perform as well in school as the children who are.  So, this affects our education system as well.  This isn’t just something about that one particular kid, but this child now is not getting the appropriate treatment, they’re not getting the appropriate attention, and they’re creating disruption problems in the classroom that’s costing the education system money.  It’s also causing impacts on the other kids in the classroom as well.  So, this, again, has an impact on other people, not only that particular child.


Another thing I want to just point out is that, for example, the CDC has been looking at what’s been happening with the influenza immunization, because in the last couple of years, children from six months to twenty-three months are now recommended to have universal immunization for influenza.  It’s certainly a great thing.  We were very concerned about children getting influenza.  Well, actually an interesting thing has happened since that recommendation has taken place.  The number of elderly who get influenza and die of influenza started to drop at the same time.  So, by giving children immunizations for influenza, we are seeing a decline in deaths in the elderly because they’re getting those immunizations.  And again, in order for them to get those influenza shots—I mean, we certainly can set up lots of flu shot centers all over the place, but really, the best place for them to get it is through having a medical home site of continuous care.

So, our concern in CMA, and my own personal concern, is that while I understand that the Administration is trying to address many issues in terms of the premium payment proposal, there are going to be a lot administrative issues.  But the rate of this enrollment, I think, is going to create a cost both financially and in the healthcare arena, as well as other systems, that I really think from a public policy point of view is not worth the amount of savings that we are going to accomplish by this premium program.

One reason you have share-of-cost in healthcare is to try to encourage people to use healthcare more wisely.  I’m not sure that this premium proposal is really going to cause people to use healthcare more wisely.  What are we going to do when the parent shows up in the emergency room, who dropped their Medi-Cal for whatever reason, who’s at 110 percent of poverty, with their child who has an asthma attack?  What are we supposed to do?  Are we just supposed to say, Well, you made a choice not to pay it and you can’t afford it now, so we just kick you out of the ER?  Do we say, We’ll take care of it right now, and swallow the cost for the ER?  Oh, by the way, if they can’t pay the premium, are we supposed to provide them chronic treatment so that they don’t end up in the ER again next week?  Are they going to get the steroid medication that they need, the inhaler that they need?  Is someone going to do the follow-up visit to be sure that they’re going to stay stable so they don’t show up in the emergency room two weeks later?  Yes, we gave them the medication, we stabilized them at that one point, but they don’t have the money to pay.  I don’t think that we’re really going to accomplish that particular aim.


So, I appreciate the effort.  I think at this point in time we certainly would have many very grave concerns about this proposal.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you so much, Dr. Pan.


Are there questions of this witness?


Let me thank you all for your presentations.  Stan, thank you.  I know that you’ll be sitting here for the next panel.  Thank you all, and I appreciate your testimony.


We have two more panels, and I’m going to warn you all—we’re going to lose members, as we’ve lost sine if them.  I know that we probably have, at most, forty minutes to finish the next two panels.  We have less speakers, so that’s going to work to our advantage.


The second to last panel is the “Single Point of Entry.”  Mr. Rosenstein as well as Frank Mecca, executive director, County Welfare Directors Association of California.


Did you want to do a presentation, Ms. Mollow?


MS. MOLLOW:  Yes.  Again, thank you for the opportunity to present on the Single Point of Entry redesign proposal.  In looking at this proposal, this was our attempt at looking at how we can work towards implementing some streamlining processes with the Medi-Cal eligibility determination process.


In looking at this, we looked at utilizing the Single Point of Entry application process that is currently in place today for Medi-Cal and for the Healthy Families program.  This was our starting point in looking at how we can implement some eligibility streamlining with the eligibility processing that is currently in place today.


We are proposing that the Single Point of Entry vendor that is currently in place for the Medi-Cal application processing and Healthy Families processing, that this vendor would be utilized to conduct initial Medi-Cal eligibility determinations for children that have been deemed to have no-cost Medi-Cal eligibility.  And this would serve as a centralized, one-stop center for families for initial eligibility determinations for these children.  Once the vendor makes the initial eligibility determination, then that eligibility determination would be submitted to state staff to do the final certification; and then, once that eligibility certification has been made, then the case would be given over to the counties for the counties to do their ongoing case management in the annual redeterminations.


At this point, we recognize that there are issues that have been raised to us by the County Welfare Directors Association and that we are in the process of scheduling a meeting with them to discuss this proposal and to respond to questions that they may have.


In looking at the Single Point of Entry processing proposal, again, the vendor would do the initial screens.  We’re not looking at changing any of the other eligibility processings that are currently in place.  If the application goes into the county, that process would still remain in place.  This would only impact those applications that are submitted through the Single Point of Entry vendor and for those cases that have had an initial assessment for no-cost Medi-Cal eligibility.

If applications that are processed by the Single Point of Entry vendor, if it is determined that the Medi-Cal eligibility is denied—because we are using state staff to do the final certification of the eligibility determinations—then the state staff would issue the appropriate notices of actions and then would represent the department accordingly at any fair hearings that may be filed.


We are also looking at the vendor being accountable for completing eligibility determinations within given timeframes, and absent their ability to carry forward on this, then financial penalties would be assessed.  Applicants would be afforded a toll-free number to call for application assistance and status information on the eligibility determination.  It is estimated that the Single Point of Entry vendor would process approximately 7,000 applications a month for children in this manner.  And again, once the eligibility determination is made by the Single Point of Entry vendor and it’s been certified by the state, it would then go on to the county for the annual redeterminations.


It is anticipated that there would have to be some significant changes to the Medi-Cal eligibility data systems in order to allow the SPE vendor to do some updates to that Medi-Cal eligibility data file, and state legislation as well as federal approvals would be needed for this proposal.  And it is anticipated that this new process would be operational by March 2006.


Thank you.


SENATOR VINCENT:  [Inaudible.]


MS. MOLLOW:  That’s our proposed timeline implementation, yes.


SENATOR VINCENT:  [Inaudible.]


MS. MOLLOW:  Two thousand six.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Two thousand six, okay.


Members, do you have any questions?  Would you like to pose any questions, members?


If not, we’ll hear Mr. Mecca.


MR. FRANK MECCA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and member.  I’m Frank Mecca.  I’m the executive director of the County Welfare Directors Association.  We appreciate the opportunity to testify on this very significant proposal, which is a significant change from the current eligibility process.


Our association has long supported real simplification of the Medi-Cal program.  We think its Byzantine structure, its myriad of complex rules, create a host of inefficiencies, and we have a number of proposals to simplify the Medi-Cal program that we’ve presented in the past and will continue to present to this Legislature.


It’s important to point out that the proposal before you doesn’t change the rules for the Medi-Cal program or the underlying structure that creates the inefficiencies that are central to the program, as we see it, but rather, it changes who performs the eligibility determinations initially, whether it’s the county or a private vendor certified by the state.

We think it’s a significant proposal that could affect upwards of 150,000 children.  And so, in evaluating it, we have a handout that looks like this.  It’s just a small guide to sort of follow through our testimony.  We think that there are two key decision criteria for the Legislature as you evaluate this proposal and as we evaluate this proposal in the counties.


The first is:  Is the proposal better for children and families?  And I think on that point it’s important to point out that no child will be better off under this proposal.  That is to say, that under current law, when an application comes to the Single Point of Entry to be screened, the child is automatically enrolled in accelerated Medi-Cal eligibility.  And so, under the current system, the child is eligible for Medi-Cal from the point at which they make application.  So, changing from the county to the private vendor as to who does the initial eligibility doesn’t affect that child’s coverage during that period of time that they apply.  This proposal is not really about improving coverage for children and families.


We are concerned about some possible impact of the proposal that would be detrimental to children in the state.  Part of the savings, that I’ll talk a little about later, that are identified for the proposal, about a third of the savings in the proposal stem from the assumption that this proposal will result in ineligible children being terminated from accelerated eligibility faster than they are terminated from Medi-Cal under the current system.  Certainly, it’s a debatable point whether they should be getting coverage or not, since they’re ineligible, but the impact clearly is that there will be a category of children under the proposal that become uninsured more quickly than current law.  So, there is some potential impact on some number of children.


The other concern we have for clients is the inability of some clients to access a face-to-face interaction with the eligibility determiner.  For example, many applications that are mailed in to the Single Point of Entry are incomplete.  They don’t have all the information that would allow us—or in this proposal’s case the vendor—to process eligibility.  Many clients like the opportunity to come in to our office, use our photocopy machine, interact with an eligibility worker, ask questions that they’re confused about, because this is an awfully confusing set of programs.  Not all clients want that and not all applicants need it, but for some significant number of applicants, the inability to access an eligibility worker face to face, we think, could be of concern.  And so, we’d ask you to think about, perhaps, how this proposal might impact clients whose applications are incomplete differently from how the proposal might affect clients who submit a complete application on which you can immediately make that determination.


There’s also an impact on some families who could receive less favorable coverage under the proposal than under current law.  This past week we spent some time in Sacramento County with eligibility workers whose job was to process applications that were forwarded to the county from the Single Point of Entry, and there was a particular application that I think is illustrative of the complexity in the program and the difficulty that some applicants might face.  This is the actual application.  It was a client who was screened as “likely eligible” by the vendor for Medi-Cal, so the application was mailed to the county.  When the county processed the application, the family’s income level was above the amount that would allow them to qualify for Medi-Cal under what’s known as the Federal Poverty Limit Programs.  Those are the programs that you can be eligible for without an asset test.  In this case, there was a mother, a stepfather, stepsiblings, and the total family income was in excess of the Federal Poverty Limit Program, so the child was not eligible.



What the eligibility worker then determined was that based on a somewhat arcane but important court case in California—the Sneede case—this child actually was eligible for no-cost Medi-Cal under the Sneede rule which basically requires us to disregard the income of the stepparent and apportion the income of the other parent.  This is a child who’s eligible for no-cost Medi-Cal under the 1931(b) program.  They’re eligible for continuous eligibility for twelve months, and they’re eligible for transitional Medi-Cal when the family’s income exceeds the 1931(b) levels.  

Under this proposal, as we understand it—and we’ll acknowledge there are a lot of questions that we still have and certainly look forward to engaging with the department about those questions—but under the proposal, it appears to us that that child would automatically be routed to the Healthy Families program.  There would not be a capacity for the vendor, once the child was found ineligible for the first Medi-Cal program, to then look for the next Medi-Cal program.  And that next Medi-Cal program that the child was deemed eligible for, the parent brought in proof that their assets were below the limit; a capacity that, as we understand the proposal before you, is not involved in what the vendor would be able to do. 


So, we don’t know the numbers of cases that it would affect, but there’s going to be some impact on some number of clients.  And so, on the first decision criterion, is it better for clients?  I think it’s safe to say that it was not intended to be.  It was intended to be a program to create cost efficiencies, but there would be some potential impact for some clients.

Given that this really isn’t about improving coverage for children and that it’s about efficiency, I’d like to turn to the second decision criterion, which is, really, the key issue we think that’s before the Legislature.  Is the Single Point of Entry proposal more efficient and less costly than the current county eligibility process?  Our bottom line assessment at this point is that the answer’s unclear because of a number of significant questions that I’ll just touch on but that we’ll be engaging with the department and the Legislature on as you consider this proposal more fully.


First let me say that as it’s fully ramped up, the proposal was presented in the Governor’s budget as saving $7 million a year, General Fund.  That was the full-year realized impact.  That was the number recited in the LAO analysis.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  I’m sorry.  Mr. Mecca?  Do you know whether that acknowledged all the new state positions they’re asking for, which is close to       $7 million?


MR. MECCA:  That number did include the state positions.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  So, they were saying it would save 14 minus the 7 million?


MR. MECCA:  Yes, that’s the net savings.  And that would include the county administration savings and the Medi-Cal savings from the children who’d be kicked off of accelerated eligibility more quickly.  What it doesn’t include is the cost to the vendor—the General Fund cost to the vendor—because they were in MRMIB’s budget.


I just think it’s important to point out that we’re not talking about a proposal that, best case, saves seven million.  We’re talking about a proposal that best case, based on what was presented in the Governor’s budget, is $4.6 million annual savings.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Let me just interrupt you one more time.  Something for the LAO and the folks that are out there, it would be interesting, I think, when we get to the subcommittee part, to do a comparative analysis of what if the Single Point of Entry was the counties and we got rid of MAXIMUS instead?  I mean, how much money are we paying to the company when the county has to do the eligibility anyway?  I mean, you all can competitively bid for it.  That’s the new thing of the day.  But I think it would be interesting to analyze the cost, because it wouldn’t cost any state positions.  You save on whatever you’re paying on the contract.  How much would it cost to shift that over and just give the counties eligibility on the whole deal?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Today the counties have eligibility.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  They don’t do the Healthy Families.  So, what you’re suggesting is you want to have the vendor who’s doing the Healthy Families do the Medi-Cal, and I’m suggesting, why not check out the opposite?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Well, I think it would be a very good comparison to do—to compare the costs.  I mean, there’s some caveats with that because Medi-Cal’s far more complicated, but it would be an interesting experience to compare the two.


MR. MECCA:  We actually sponsored a bill that would allow the counties, once we find someone ineligible for any of the Medi-Cal programs but clearly eligible for Healthy Families, to allow us to then confer Healthy Families eligibility, because that family. . . . actually, the child’s uncovered.  The child is uninsured.  That proposal died on a suspense file because of a less-than-a-million-dollar cost because we would actually be getting children on Healthy Families more quickly.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Was that in the Senate?  No.


MR. MECCA:  No.  It was the other side.


I guess the point was, there was opposition among the Administration at the time of expanding General Fund costs, but to us, it’s a simplification proposal that could create some administrative efficiency but would actually get a child covered who’s otherwise uncovered.  And so, we will be offering up proposing that once again.


There are a couple more issues regarding the cost-benefit analysis of the proposal that really need to be fleshed out further.  The proposal assumes, as we understand it, that the vendor can process the application for less than half of what counties are reimbursed to process the application.  You provide us—I think it’s $164.  The way we read the Governor’s budget proposal, it looks like the belief is that the vendor could do it for $70, which, given economies of scale, we would like further exploration of the basis for that assumption because it’s not something that’s immediately intuitive to us based on our understanding of the complexity of Medi-Cal eligibility.


The other issue that I think we need to do is a significant amount of exploration over the automation impacts because we have a lot of experience bringing up complicated eligibility automation systems.  The costs and the time it takes to bring those systems up could, depending on how it’s provided . . . [portion of dialogue missing from recording] . . . So, we’ve had some preliminary discussions with the Administration about how it might work, but we do think the automation implications for the proposal are quite significant.

SENATOR ORTIZ:  If you could briefly, Mr. Rosenstein, address the two points:  the assumption that going away from the county would be half the cost of what’s currently provided to the counties, as well as the question of do we have a sense of what the automation costs, that I assume would be started, but enhancement and ongoing costs that might in any. . . . I mean, might that create greater costs and lesser efficiencies?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Let me talk about the automation first.  I wanted to, first of all, acknowledge that we’re working with Mr. Mecca and his staff on this issue.


Part of this is already automated.  The example that Mr. Mecca gives is actually a good example but incorrect.  What had happened, as Mr. Mecca mentioned, the Single Point of Entry had correctly referred that family to the county as Medi-Cal eligible.  They did that because they Sneede(ed) the case already.  Mr. Mecca mentioned that after the county Sneede(ed) the case, they determined indeed they were Medi-Cal eligible.  Sent it to the county from the Single Point of Entry; the county found them Medi-Cal eligible.  You know, the interpretation I walked away from that is, the Single Point of Entry actually did the Sneede(ing) of the case correctly. 


Much of the automation that we do now—not all of it—is already done at the Single Point of Entry.  We do a lot of redundant processing with these applications.  That was an issue when we brought up the Single Point of Entry years ago.  The intent here is to see if we can eliminate some of the redundancy so we don’t have the Single Point of Entry handling the application, doing the screening, doing the Sneede(ing), sending it to the county, and the county enters it into their system, processes the application, does the same Sneede(ing) process that the Single Point of Entry does.  So, we’re looking for:  Is there an automation simplification instead of handling the application twice?  When the vendor finishes, the vendor can’t certify it; the state would.  It would go to the county as a completed case.  So, we think there is some efficiencies. 


The application process in Medi-Cal takes a long time.  It’s true there would be some savings by taking ineligible children off of presumptive eligibility quicker than the current county processing.  You know, the federal government requires they be off in 45 days, so we have a mandate to do it fairly quickly as it is.  You know, it’s not the purpose of presumptive eligibility to provide coverage to ineligible children.  

I think, indeed, the issue of cost is an interesting one.  I don’t think anybody disputes that the Healthy Families processing costs are cheaper than the Medi-Cal eligibility costs.  And really, the question is:  Can we indeed do the Medi-Cal determination for these children at a lower cost to the vendor?  We think we can.  The numbers that have been proposed do show that we can.  It is a simpler application than a parental application, but the application they’re processing here—the application the county has—doesn’t have asset information on it.  It’s a child’s application without assets.  You can’t use that application and do a family determination for 1931(b) because that requires assets.  That information is not even on the application when it’s submitted.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Mr. Mecca, I’m going to allow you to quickly respond, but we really need to get through this.  And Senator Ducheny is going to address this more fully in her subcommittee.


MR. MECCA:  I think Mr. Rosenstein intimated that the basis for the belief that the vendor could do the processing at half the cost of the county is that Healthy Families is cheaper than Medi-Cal, and that, to us, is the ultimate apples and oranges comparison.  Healthy Families is cheaper, in large part, because it’s a much simpler program and simpler than the program that we believe this. . . . even the children who are applying via mail would be eligible for.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Thank you for that clarification.  We’ll have greater opportunity to explore that.


Unless there are other questions, let me get to the final panel.


Thank you, Mr. Mecca.  Stan, you should stay in the warm seat.


We have Ms. Snow with the California Dental Association, as well as Dr. Irving Lebovics.  Welcome.  

Stan, did you want to open this?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  I do, and I’ll make it very brief.  I know it’s running late, and I guarantee I won’t use my time allotment.


We look very closely at benefits for Medi-Cal.  There’s a lot of belief out there that Medi-Cal is a very expansive benefit program, much bigger than private insurance, and much bigger than most states.  It is.  We offer one of the broadest, largest benefit programs of any state.  We looked at how we could align Medi-Cal closer to private insurance.  We looked at a number of things.  We looked at:  Should we do something with the EPSDT?  We spent literally hundreds of hours looking at the Medi-Cal benefits program, and we basically concluded for the aged, blind, and disabled, who use most of the benefits that are extra on Medi-Cal, that most of that is needed.  It’s used largely to keep people out of a nursing facility.  So, there’s no proposal there.  We just decided not to propose any changes.


A number of states have done that and tried to change the EPSDT program.  We certainly had a lot of discussion about that, and what we came down to is one change, and that was looking at private insurance.  Every private dental plan that we could find, every dental plan has a maximum cap on dental benefits, and our proposal is to cap dental benefits for adults.  Only eight states in the nation cover adult Medicaid at this point.  We don’t have a benefit.  We’re proposing an annual $1,000 benefit limit.  We would make exemptions to that limit for emergency services and for federally mandated services.  And with a limit, basically Medi-Cal beneficiaries will be in the same circumstance that all of us are with private insurance.  If your service has exceeded the limit, you basically have to wait until the next year to get services.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Senator Ducheny?


SENATOR DUCHENY:  I want to hear from the witnesses, and I do want to try to leave by five, but I just had two quick questions.


Did your proposal contemplate perhaps allowing preventive?  Let’s say two cleanings a year that don’t count toward the cap, or something like that, so that we could ensure that people might not need the more expensive care.

MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’re not proposing to exempt preventive services.  Right now Medi-Cal only provides one cleaning a year.  


SENATOR DUCHENY:  It should be two anyway.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We used to days ago, but that was one of the budget cuts years ago.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Well, we ought to think about that.  

My other question is:  Where did the thousand dollars come from?  Is that an average, like how much services people are using?  Did we look at Medi-Cal utilization rates?  Do most people fall under that?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Three million adults in the Medi-Cal program—900,000 people get dental care in a year.  About 94,000 of them would exceed the cap in any given year.  We picked a thousand dollars.  Most commercial plans are about $2,000.  PERS is $2,000.  Medi-Cal rates are substantially lower than PERS rates, so that’s how we arrived at the thousand dollars.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  So, by your estimation, 94,000 of the existing patients would be over the cap in any given year?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  That’s correct.


SENATOR DUCHENY:  Kind of high to me, but maybe the dentist can explain that.  I mean, it just seems to me, if it was workable—and I don’t know whether that’s the right number or 1,500 or 1,200, if there’s going to be one—but it does seem to me that we would want to encourage the cleanings and some of the preventative care and perhaps exempt that from the cap, or something like that, if there were to be one.  


Go ahead.


MS. LIZ SNOW:  Thank you.  Liz Snow with the California Dental Association.  I appreciate the opportunity to provide comment on this.


We are not unfamiliar with this proposal.  It is, in fact, conceptually something that we put forward as a possibility two years ago when the state was looking for budget cuts.  It was put forward with a number of other proposals that we worked closely with the Legislature and the Administration on, and the Legislature chose to move forward with other budget cuts as opposed to placing a cap on benefits.  At that time, when we put forward the possibility of an annual maximum cap on benefits, it was strictly something that was conceptually being considered because we were very concerned that the entire program would be cut at that point in time.


While we do appreciate the Administration’s desire to make this a little bit more consistent with a commercial benefits plan, there are a number of things that if, in fact, you’re going to move in that direction, we would ask you to give serious consideration to.


One is that the annual maximum cap that is provided in a commercial benefits plan, as the department has indicated, the average is approximately $2,000 in the private sector.  You are dealing with people who have, by and large, consistently had more treatment in a lifetime and are receiving more preventative care.  So, $2,000 may be appropriate for them because many of them are receiving that insurance year after year after year. 


From the dentist perspective, the provider perspective, the annual maximum for each beneficiary, regardless of when they become eligible under their employer’s plan or a purchase plan, their annual maximum is almost always calculated on a calendar year.  So, when you talk about the sort of approach that dentists are familiar with and comfortable working with, it really is an understanding that the calendar year maximum is what is in play.  There is a reason why dental offices are frequently very, very busy in November, December, January, and February; you know, using up two different calendar-year benefits to provide necessary treatment.  That is a system that dentists are very familiar working with.


So far, while we have had some very productive conversations with representatives from Health Services, one of the primary sticking points is how that annual cap would be calculated.  At this point in time, it’s our understanding that they want to look at a rolling cap that would vary beneficiary by beneficiary, depending on when the individual becomes eligible, which actually becomes an implementation nightmare, I would think, for the department, but also logistically for dentists.  I can’t imagine you’re going to have very many providers left in the program if you don’t come up with a consistent timeframe.


Secondly, I did make brief reference to the information on beneficiaries that you deal with in trying to implement an annual maximum cap.  In the private sector, that information for any patient is readily accessible, so you can easily find out where a patient is in his or her benefit maximum.  At this point in time, the department doesn’t have the capability to post that sort of information online, so you would be asking dentists to call in, probably to an 800 number, for every single beneficiary.  Also something that I think would be problematic on the provider side as well as logistically—Department of Health Services handling that number of phone calls.

When we put this proposal out two years ago, it was always our intent that this would be used as a temporary cost-savings measure.  We never actually believed that this sort of long-term change as is proposed by the Administration as part of a redesign is really appropriate for this population.  So, we would ask that if the Legislature moves forward and considers a cap, that they would include a sunset and that you would not consider this an appropriate thing to do long-term for this population.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Appreciate that recommendation.  I want to remind, we have less than ten minutes.  Have you . . . 


MS. SNOW:  Actually, I have finished in terms of the questions related to exemptions and treatment plans.  Dr. Lebovics has some information about some of those specifics.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Great.  And I assume that Dr. Lebovics actually has testimony that I want to provide time for.


Welcome.  Introduce yourself to the panel.


DR. IRVING LEBOVICS:  Hi, I’m Dr. Irving Lebovics.  I’m involved with the California Dental Association as chair of the Government Affairs Council, as well as the director of dentistry at Cedar Sinai Medical Center in Los Angeles, and director of the Hospital Dental Residency Program at that same institution.


As far as the services and benefits that would be potentially not involved under this program—because they are more than thousand-dollar expenses under a DentaCal program that we would want to see possibly covered—many of them on the list that was put forward, I believe, by the department have to do with situations that don’t often come up, but when they do come up, they’re very significant:  cleft palate patients need an obturator or a prosthesis to close an opening between the nose and the mouth—things of that nature.

However, one of the more frequent things that we see in our clinics—and this applies also to dental schools and to other educational institutions—is the general denture patient.  Even though a denture might be a less than a $1,000 per year item, there are many support services that are involved in making a denture.  Those patients may need extractions.  They may need tissue work.  They may need a temporary denture during a healing period of time.  The ancillary services together with the denture often are, even under Medi-Cal fees, way over $1,000.  When that happens, if you have a cap, you basically are telling that patient, You’re not eligible for services, because you can’t do the procedure without doing the underlying procedure.  It would be sort of like saying to somebody, You can paint your house, but you can’t put the primer on first because we can’t cover the primer; we can only cover the painting.  These patients don’t have the ability to access the additional funds always.


The other part which I think we would like to have taken a little bit of a look at is the disabled patient.  Last time around when we dealt with the elimination of Adult DentaCal, it was understood the disabled adult patient was going to be kept on the program together with the pediatric patients that are mandated by federal law.  It seems from the proposal that’s here is that there would be a thousand-dollar cap on those patients as well, which would mean, for example, those patients who need to be treated under general anesthesia, the scenario might be something like, we put the patient out under general anesthesia—the procedure is covered.  We can only do three teeth because we hit the thousand-dollar cap, and then next year we’re going to put him out a second time to do the three teeth on the other side, which is really not a good treatment mode nor a proper way to treat these patients and more financially . . .

SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’d have to schedule them the end of December and the first week of January, and that’s it, and hope they don’t . . .


DR. LEBOVICS:  Well, it’s not a question of that.  It’s a question of two procedures, two anesthesia procedures, one of which is totally unnecessary.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, I understand.


DR. LEBOVICS:  So, these are the kinds of things we’d like to see—maybe the disabled patient dealt with a little bit differently as well.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Sound recommendation.


Questions or comments from committee members?


Mr. Rosenstein, would you like to respond?  And let me just say, these are not just dental benefits.  These go to core health issues, particularly if you have a diabetic patient that has gum disease or compromised heart disease risk factors.  Can you determine whether or not there’s a way to exempt out some of these pretty significant health implications of failed dental care?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  A couple of comments.  One, we’re open to looking at an annual cap like everybody else versus a rolling cap.  In terms of the list of exempted procedures, our dentists put together what we thought was the appropriate list.  We’re certainly open to work with CDA, and I believe staff have, to talk about:  Is there a better list or other things to be added to the exemption list?  We are looking at, internally, additional exemptions, and we would welcome the doctor’s comments to our dentists to try to make sure we understand what else ought to be exempted.  We’re open to those discussions.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m sure Senator Ducheny will make sure that occurs in the budget process.


Okay.  I have some closing comments, but let me ask my colleagues if they would like to.  Thank you, Senator Figueroa, you’ve been patient and engaged, and I appreciate it.  Senator Ducheny?


I’ll do some closing comments, and I thank you all for your testimony.  I know it’s been a long afternoon.


As always, this testimony is enlightening.  It’s problematic; it’s of concern.  I mean, I think we’ve heard, certainly the Administration has heard, that the imposition of these premiums, we believe, could in fact have the reverse effect—not saving the State of California—and potentially putting us into legal jeopardy with the federal government, as well as just harming the very families that I think we all want to serve.  The question is:  How do we move forward in a time of very few options, where there’s a very strong desire of the Administration to move forward on Medi-Cal redesign, and how do we do it in a way that actually makes sense and is cognizant of the population that we’re serving?


I did a little bit of a calculation in terms of our ability as legislators.  I get $99,000 a year because I don’t take per diem.  Those of my colleagues who have to maintain a second residence here in Sacramento, I think on average make $130,000 a year.  Not a lot.  But we have a medical and a dental plan that is well under 7 percent of our income, or 3 percent of our gross income.  

The standard that we’re expecting for the families here to me ignores the reality of the cost of housing.  I have to say, I know when my mother was a mom who was divorced and raising five children in Sacramento, we lived in a very poor, small house that we rented.  I saw a dentist at the age of 12, after my parents were divorced.  My teeth had so many problems from delayed treatment.  Fortunately, they’re not as bad as some of my brothers.  But I mean, that was significant—fillings and other care.  And we know that the number one problem for children—acute healthcare is when they enter schools—is that they have dental caries.  Significant dental caries.  If you don’t take care of that, these children can’t learn.

But more importantly, you know, is to have a decent running car that isn’t costing more to maintain.  As we have pushed mostly mothers and children to work, as they should—and they don’t have to work under the table as people I knew had to do in order to keep their kids fed—it just really does ignore the reality of the working poor in this state.  And I just hope we’re going to crunch these numbers; we’re going to acknowledge the figures.  

My staff forwarded the LAO report that Senator Cox referenced that was based on some assumptions on national income levels of 200 percent or below 200 percent of federal poverty level.  You know, for us to say that poor people spend 7 percent (in this report) on basic living expenses and that their healthcare also is 7 percent—actually, 7 out of 10 dollars, so 70 percent on basic living expenses (housing, transportation, and food) of people who learn less than 200 percent on a national survey that then says they spend 7 percent on healthcare—doesn’t say whether or not that’s a reasonable thing we should expect of a mother with two children who works at a very difficult job and her gross income is $1,100 a month.  I mean, this is just not fair to measure what we’re requiring for families to put their children at risk, and I just ask us to be cognizant of that and respectful of that and that the choices and options of people who are very, very, very poor, and they’re working poor, are far different than those of us who have great coverage, and it’s not a life and death decision for us to feed our kids versus pay for that monthly premium.  So, let’s keep that in mind.


Let me thank you all for an important hearing today.  I will not have to sit on the Budget subcommittee this year, but you’re in good hands with Senator Ducheny.  And thank you all.  It’s been a fruitful afternoon.  


I look forward to working with you, Stan.  Certainly Senator Ducheny does.


I apologize—was there public comment?  If there isn’t, that’s even better.


Thank you.  This hearing’s adjourned.

# # #
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